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Financial Highlights
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For the year ended
31 December (in HK$'000)

Revenue

Gross profit
EBITDA
Operating profit
Profit for the year

At 31 December (in HK$'000)

Total assets

Total liabilities
Total equity

Net current assets

Per share (in HK$)
Earnings per share
— Basic (HK$)
— Diluted (HK$)

Financial ratios

Gross profit margin
Operating profit margin
Net profit margin
Current ratio

Return on equity’
Return on assets?

Notes
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1 Return on equity = Profit for the year/Equity as at year end
2 Return on assets = Profit for the year/Total assets as at year end

2011 2010
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1,103,180 723,610

391,702 291,870
210,596 175,121
207,463 172,508
181,795 145,423
2,006,038 1,505,360
404,884 218,249
1,601,154 1,287,111
1,590,110 1,275,686

0.175 0.194

0.175 0.194

35.5% 40.3%

18.8% 23.8%

16.5% 20.1%

4.9 6.8

11.4% 11.3%

9.1% 9.7%
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The foIIowing is a simplified diagram illustrating the transaction
flow in a typical electronic payment transaction
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Source: Analysys International, CSI

» EFT-POS terminal solutions providers sell EFT-POS products
and provide related services to merchant service providers and
acquirers.

» Merchant service providers provide transaction processing
solutions to merchants by assisting merchants in setting-up their
operations to accept cards as a form of payment from their
customers.

1. Cardholder purchases with card at a merchant through an EFT-POS
terminal.

2:  The EFT-POS terminal sends transaction data to the acquirer.
3&4: The acquirer sends authorization request and verifies with the card issuer
that the card number and transaction amount are both valid through the

network of card association.

5&6: The card issuer verifies that the cardholder’s credit is sufficient and grants

authorization.

7:  The acquirer receives the response and relays it to the merchant.
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(e.g. payment processors, such as :
First Data of US, financial institutions, !
such as Agricultural Bank of China) :

I
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EFT-POS Products
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Commercial Bank or Third Party
Payment Service Provider
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EFT-POS Products
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Products
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POS Terminals
POS #& %

e Accept magnetic strip cards and IC cards and support credit,
debit and a full range of pre-paid products, including gift
cards and loyalty programs

e Models: P80, P78, S80, P58, S58, SP30-S, SP30-T, S78

o TFHEBBEERRICK UXHEAT BLRRERIENE
o BREEANREHERE

e 7SR : P8O - P78 » S80 * P58 * S58 * SP30-S * SP30-T * S78

P80 P78

ey
Criy

Rt
Loty

S80 P58

S58 SP30-S

SP30-T S78

Payment transaction data can be stored in the terminals
for later retrieval and forwarded for authorization and
settlement. Generally used in the entertainment, restaurants
and hospitality segments

Models: P60-S1, S60-S, S60-T

AR T X R SBIER L m R AER @R R R B RHEXE
RIERGEE - —RARNRYE BENBIEZE

AUSE - P6O-ST ~ S60-S » S60-T

P60-S1 S60-S

S60-T

Support multiple wireless communication methods, such as
GSM, GPRS/CDMA and WiFi, Applications include “pay-at-
the-table” and transportation (e.g. Taxi)

Models: S90, P90, T80

ZIEZEEGZHAS N - L0GSM - GPRS/CDMARWIFE « FEF
IS B B RS | B (AEHiRE)

AUSE © S90 ~ P90 ~ T80

S90 P90 T80
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o High security phone POS, which complies with various Contactless devices

industry standands including PCI PTS and EMV 2000. Solves =y
fund transfer and eliminates cheque settlements issue. 3'51%%:_&@"55&1%

Generally used in the wholesale markets, small and medium

size businesses o Specifically designed for contactless payment, which comply

J Models: SP30 E-POS with various industry standards including MasterCard'’s
o BRPMAETHEBLBHES L IBITERTBIEPC PTSKEMV PayPass and Visa's PayWave

2000 © —MARBBEIBRTNES - FERAEEMSEY | ¢ Models: RS0, S30, R50-M, T60 ‘

ES ) . ERFEBAIMNMER AFTEZEAENEE  BF
. AI5% © SP30 E-POS MasterCard#JPayPass [ Visa#]PayWave

. AUSE © R50 * S30 * R50-M ~ T60

SP30 E-POS

Consumer activated devices

HBERERE o0 "0

° Support a variety of connection options to work with POS
terminals

o Models: PP20-C, PP20-D, SP20, SP30, MT30, WP100

. SR ZIEPOSH i i ) B IR 18

° AUSE © PP20-C ~ PP20-D * SP20 ~ SP30 * MT30 * WP100

R50-M T60

PP20-D

SP30 MT30

WP100
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Py - The following is a simplified corporate chart of the Group's principal operating subsidiaries
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Pax Computer Technology

Pax Technology, Inc.
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (USA)

(PRC)
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Directors and Senior Management

EERSEEEAES

As at 15 March 2012, the date of the Report of the Directors, the
biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

NIE Guoming (hairman

Mr. Nie, aged 49, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company. He is responsible for the overall management and strategic
development of the Group. Mr. Nie has over 16 years of experience
in the card payment industry. He joined Pax Technology Limited (“Pax
Technology”) since founding of the company in 20 March 2000. He
was the vice president of Pax Technology from 20 March 2000 to 1
January 2001. He has been the president of Pax Technology from 2
January 2001 to 14 June 2010. He was appointed as the chairman
of Pax Technology since 14 June 2010. Mr. Nie previously worked
as an engineer in the Information Technology Department of the
Headquarters of China Merchants Bank in the PRC from 1996 to 1999.
Mr. Nie graduated from Tsinghua University in 1984 with a bachelor
degree in Radio Electronics and obtained a master degree in Radio
Electronics Engineering from Southeast University in 1991. He was
appointed as the Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company
on 1 December 2010.

JIANG Hongchun (et Executive Officer

Mr. Jiang, aged 41, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of the Company. He is responsible for the overall management
of the Group's operations. Mr. Jiang was the vice president and the
chief executive officer of Hangzhou Pax Electric Technology Limited
from 7 March 2007 to 31 January 2008 and from 1 February 2008 to
14 June 2010, respectively. He was appointed as the chief executive
officer and president of Pax Technology since 14 June 2010. He has
over 16 years of experience in payment industry and meter solutions
industry. Mr. Jiang joined Schlumberger Technologies (Asia) Limited
as a technical support engineer in the Smart Cards & Terminal
Division in August 1993, and was promoted to senior engineer and
product manager for banking retail terminal in December 1994 and
January 1996, respectively. He was a vice president of Beijing Future
Information Technology Co., Ltd., from 1 September 2001 to 28
February 2007, where he was responsible for sales and marketing of
point-of-sale, automatic teller machines and bank card processing
solutions. Mr. Jiang is currently a committee member of the Chinese
National Standardization Technical Committee for Electrical Measuring
Instruments (2HE TEB[EHKSZE(LFIIMEZEE). Mr. Jiang
graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (/8328 AE2) in 1992
with a bachelor’s degree in automatic control. He was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company on
24 February 2010.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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Directors and Senior Management

ESEREEEEAES

LI Wenjin

Mr. Li, aged 48, is an Executive Director of the Company. He is
responsible for risk management and treasury management. He is
also responsible for overseeing operations of Pax Technology of which
he has been a Director since 5 April 2000. Mr. Li has over 20 years
of experience in investment and administrative affairs. Mr. Li was the
Director of Hi Sun Information Technology Services Limited (“HSITSL")
from 1 August 1997 to 3 May 2005. HSITSL was a Hong Kong
company, which was a representative and purchasing office engaging
in general trading, and engaging in provision of consultancy services.
HSITSL provided consultancy services to Pax Technology from 2002 to
2003. Mr. Li is also the managing Director of Hi Sun Limited since 16
August 1999 and an Executive Director of Hi Sun since 7 June 2001.
He has also been appointed as an Executive Director of both Hi Sun
Limited and Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (“Hi Sun”) and certain
of their subsidiaries. Prior to joining Hi Sun Limited in 1999, he worked
for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong, including Beijing
Order Computer Company, a system integration company, from 1994
to 1995 where he was responsible for investment and administrative
affairs. Mr. Li obtained a master’s degree in law from the Peking
University in 1989. He was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 24 February 2010.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

YIP Wai Ming

Mr. Yip, aged 46, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 1 December 2010. Mr. Yip is currently an
Independent Non-Executive Director of BBMG Corporation (it <8
B&A B BRAF)), Ju Teng International Holdings Limited (= & BB 12 A%
ABR/Aa]) and Far East Horizon Limited G2 EZ{EHBR A F]), and was
the deputy general manager of Yuzhou Properties Company Limited
(BNHERD AR AT in 2010 and the chief financial officer of
Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (SR EREBE AR A 7)) from 2004
to 2009, all of which all companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prior
to that, he had held senior positions in other listed companies, in an
investment bank and in an international accountancy firm during the
period from 1987 to 2003. Mr. Yip graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in social sciences in 1987. He also
holds a bachelor degree in laws from the University of London. Mr. Yip
is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management

EERSEEEAES

WU Min

Dr. Wu, aged 40, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 1 December 2010. Previously, Dr. Wu was
an assistant professor with The Hong Kong University of Science &
Technology Business School and The University of Hong Kong School of
Business. Dr. Wu has been teaching International Accounting Standards,
US Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and Chinese Accounting
Standards. Her academic research achievements in identifying US
accounting restatements and frauds were reported by various media,
including the Wall Street Journal, New York Times, Business Week,
Fortune, CNN, etc. Dr. Wu used to cooperate with major accounting
firms and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (US) in
research in the areas of accounting manipulation and frauds by US
listed companies. She also provides professional interpretation and
analysis services for investment funds on accounting standards and
on listed companies’ financial statements. Dr. Wu graduated from
Peking University with a bachelor degree in Economics in 1994. Dr. Wu
obtained a master degree in Economics from Tufts University in 1996
and a Ph.D. in Accounting from Stern School of Business, New York
University in 2003.

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Mr. Man, aged 53, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 1 December 2010. Mr. Man graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in laws in
1981. Mr. Man was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1984 and
has practised as a solicitor at Joseph S. C. Chan & Co. (formerly known
as Chan and Lo) in Hong Kong since then. He is currently a partner of
Joseph S.C. Chan & Co.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

S

Rt 4058 RZE—TF+ A —BEZE
EAERRARMBLIENTES - RETZHAS
BRI ASEERNESNEGEREHIE -
RIET—EHRERGER - ZBRARGIE
AR EEFTER] o HRHRIZERSHEY KK
FFM TR REEER A R R -« AR
EERT - BE - (NSZRELRE - 5+
BECHFBSHARILER EMARSFER
ZEEAIERER LM AN HEM R IGE
B BWMAREESRUABSIEN R ET
DRFHRENEERBREOWRS - RELRN
—NNEFEERIERASE - BEES LS4 -
RIETR—NNANFES R A SRBAEEE L
B R =TT = FEALKEStern School
of BusinessBE X EFHE L2 o

XERE

XK B3 RZE—TF A —RAEZ
EARERARBENIENITES « SULER—NN—
FERENFBARE  EEBES B - UEER
—NWN\EFRAEEEE Bt —EEEEN
PRIELE  SCEIAE - BAZHEENTT (B Chan and
Lo)¥h¥ - W H AT AMRIEHE - B - ESPE
ITRAEA °



Directors and Senior Management

ESEREEEEAES

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, Mr. Lu Jie, Mr. Luo
Shaowen and Mr. Lee Chris Curl were the Company’s senior
management.

LU Jie

Mr. Lu, aged 47, is the President of Pax Computer Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Pax Technology (Shenzhen)”). He joined the
Group in August 2001 and is responsible for managing all the business
development, sales and marketing functions of the Group in China.
Mr. Lu has over 12 years of experience in sales and marketing in the
electronic payment industry and served a number of management
positions and executive role at a system integration company Beijing
Order Computer Company from 1998 to 2001 including general
manager of insurance department, general manager of marketing
department and vice president of the company. He had also worked
as an engineer of the Ministry of Geology and Mineral Resources of
the PRC and the Chinese Academy of Geological Sciences from 1986
to 1994 and from 1994 to 1995, respectively. Mr. Lu holds a bachelor
degree from Chengdu Geology Institute. Mr. Lu obtained an Executive
Master of Business Administration degree from the Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business in 2010.

LUO Shaowen

Mr. Luo, aged 43, is the Executive Vice President of Pax Technology
(Shenzhen). He is responsible for the procurement and supplies
activities, and oversees the finance of the operations in Shenzhen.
Mr. Luo graduated from Wuhan University with a bachelor degree
in economic management. Mr. Luo has over 16 years of experience
in the card payment industry and over 11 years of experience in
financial administration and supply chain management. He joined Pax
Technology (Shenzhen) in December 2004 as Chief Financial Officer.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luo served various management
positions including general manager of the Zhuhai Branch of the Beijing
Order Computer Company.

LEE Chris Curl

Mr. Lee, aged 35, is the Group Financial Controller and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company. He is responsible for overseeing the business
development and the finance of the Group. He joined the Group as
the Group Financial Controller in August 2011. Mr. Lee graduated
with a Masters in Commerce degree from The University of New South
Wales, Australia and Bachelor of Commerce degree from University
of Wollongong, Australia. He is a member of Chartered Accountant
in Australia, Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong, and chartered
holder of Financial Risk Manager in the United States. Previously, Mr.
Lee was the Group Finance Manager of a financial institution. Prior to
that, he was an auditor of an international accounting firm.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of PAX Global
Technology Limited (the “PAX Global”), | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Year 2011 was also a fruitful year for the Group, when the Group’s
turnover amounted to HK$1,103.2 million, representing a significant
growth of 52% compared to HK$723.6 million in 2010. Profit for the
year attributable to equity holders of the Company was HK$181.8
million, representing a growth of 25% as compared to HK$145.4
million in 2010. Basic earnings per share for the year was 17.5 HK cents
(2010: 19.4 HK cents).

In 2011, the China segment recorded turnover of HK$755.3 million,
representing an increase of 33% as compared to HK$566.3 million
in 2010. The increase in turnover of China segment was attributable
to China’s robust economic growth, Chinese Government'’s efforts to
support domestic consumption and the increasing consumption with
bank card and prepaid card, which led to the surge in demand for
the POS terminals in China and created a growth of turnover for the
Group.

Year 2011 was also a year of achievement for overseas segment of the
Group, with the segmental turnover amounting to HK$347.9 million,
representing an increase of 121% as compared to HK$157.3 million in
2010. The increase in segmental turnover during the year was mainly
attributable to increased sales to emerging markets explored in the
recent years such as Europe, Middle East and Africa ("EMEA"), Latin
America and Commonwealth of Independent States (“LACIS"”) and
Asia Pacific (“APAC") business units. Mature markets also recorded a
notable growth, including overseas markets such as Oceania, Japan and
North America. Moreover, the share of overseas segment in aggregate
turnover increased to 32%, as compared to 22% in the corresponding
period last year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, we strongly believe that, by capitalising on PAX
Global’s leading position in China, we will seize the enormous
potential development opportunities in China market and will lay
a solid foundation for our future growth. The Group will continue
to launch the relevant payment products for micropayment and
vertical applications such as contactless card reader, and the payment
products that supplement smartphones and tablet personal computers,
which will further consolidate and expand our existing market share.
The persistent growth of domestic financial institutions and third
party payment service providers not only improves our customer
concentration ratio but also acts as a driving force behind the domestic
business of the Group. The Group will continuously strengthen
our existing sales and after-sales service network as well as the
technical support of application development to customers, to further
consolidate the Group’s leading position in the China market. We
will also proactively invest in the R&D of new products on third party
payment and seek new business through active and close cooperation
with other potential players in the raising third party payment market
segment.

The overseas market will become major growth drivers for the
Group’s business. In recent years, continuous integration activities
in payment industry in the mature markets and the strong demands
in emerging markets together with the encouragement by the local
government, have presented favourable development opportunities
to the Group. Over the years, PAX Global, with focus on R&D and
quality control, aimed its products to meet international standards
and obtain international certifications, so that its products could be
successfully launched into the overseas market. After a decade of
continuous proactive expansion in the overseas market by PAX Global,
it formed a concrete foundation for the development of the Group’s
overseas business in the future. PAX Global continues to provide
stronger technical support to its global partners and distributors and
further enhance marketing and distribution channels to obtain greater
breakthrough in each of the overseas major markets. The Group
established various teams to address the needs of different markets.
Additional local teams will be formed depending on the needs of
individual markets such as the USA so as to provide the best payment
solution. In order to achieve the “GLOBAL PRESENCE" as soon as
possible, PAX Global is also actively looking for partnership or merger
and acquisition opportunities in respect to the technical level or sales
channel, which help the Group speed up entering into the local markets
and increase the market share or achieve synergy effects. In face of the
global economy downside risk arising from the Europe’s debt crisis,
the possible slowdown of the economic growth of the PRC and the
slower recovery in the US, the Group would strengthen the expansion
in the emerging markets such as South America, Africa Region and
other BRIC countries next year, so as to achieve a greater international
market shares and minimize the possible impact on our business by the
global economy downside risk and maintain a fruitful growth.
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R&D capability is one of the Group’s key competitive advantages,
the Group will invest more resources and enlarge the team size for
developing new products and perfecting existing products to cater
different global users’ needs. The management believes the above
forward looking strategies will lead us to move a step closer to our goal
— "To become one of the leading players in the global market”.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my utmost gratitude to our customers, bankers, suppliers, business
associates and most valued shareholders for the continuous trust and
support to the Group and our dedicated Directors, management and
staff for their valuable contributions in 2011. I look forward to further
achieving brilliant performance in the future.

Nie Guoming
Chalrman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE 2 mED

The Group is a point-of-sale (“POS") terminal solutions provider
principally engaged in the development and sale of POS products
and provision of related services (collectively the “POS terminal
solutions business”). The Group is one of the leading suppliers in the
POS terminal solutions market in China and one of the most active
international players. Our POS terminal solutions are sold in over 60
overseas countries and district regions including the United States,
Canada, Singapore, Taiwan, Hong Kong, Japan, New Zealand, France,
Finland, Saudi Arabia, South Africa, Brazil and Russia. Currently, we
work with over 30 distributors and partners worldwide.

MARKET OVERVIEW

In recent years, active merger and acquisition activities within the
industry presented PAX Global with enormous business opportunities in
both mature and emerging markets. After years of effort, PAX Global’s
global market share has recorded notable growth. China is still the
Group's major source of income. Meanwhile, the contribution from
overseas market (excluding Mainland China) to the Group’s income
is increasing gradually, with the approximate percentage to the total
turnover increased from 14% in 2008 to 32% in 2011. It is expected
that the proportion of turnover from overseas market to the total
turnover will continue to increase in the coming years. That found our
base to move forward towards our goal: to become one of the leading
POS terminal solutions providers in the world.

CHINA MARKET

Improvement in bank card acceptance environment and
growth in card payment transactions

According to The People’s Bank of China, the number of in-network
bank card merchants reached over 2.87 million by the end of 2011
(2010: 2.18 million) and in-network EFT-POS terminals has grown to
over 4.39 million sets by the end of 2011 (2010: 3.33 million sets) in
China. Today, the penetration of EFT-POS terminals in China is still
relatively low, creating a vast potential growth opportunity within the
industry. Consumers in China are becoming accustomed to using bank
cards in settling their payments and purchases. A total of 2.81 billion
bank cards had been issued in China as at the end of the third quarter
in 2011, representing a growth of 16% as compared with the end of
2010 and each individual on average held approximately 2.04 bank
cards as at the end of the third quarter in 2011. The habit of settlement
and acceptance of payment and purchases with bank cards have
been successfully extended to medical, education, transportation and
telecommunication services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFWED

Booming vertical applications

The common use of vertical applications in different sectors such as gas
stations, telecommunication carries, member and debit cards issued
by merchants, multifunction cards such as social security cards and
city cards (with small amount payment functions) will drive the need
for POS terminals. Taking the social security card as an example, the
Ministry of Human Resources and Social Securities (MOHRSS) reiterated
its plan to incorporate basic card functions including pre-paid functions
into social security cards within 5 years. The authority aims to issue 800
million social security cards during the Twelfth Five-year Plan Period.
The wide vertical applications in daily life further increases the demand
of POS terminals in China.

Uprising of third party payment service providers

As at 31 December 2011, there were 101 licensed third party payment
service providers, demonstrating the importance of this area in the
financial industry has been recognized. Under the platform of the
business model, the third party electronic payment is expected to be
an innovative financial solution, whose applications gradually extended
from electronic business areas to traditional business areas and
penetrated from online to traditional payment services. These licensed
third party payment service providers can act as drivers to further
develop the payment industry and demand for POS terminals.

OVERSEAS MARKET

Huge opportunities from overseas market and active
industry merger and acquisition

PAX Global is one of the few Chinese POS terminal solutions providers
holding PCl, EMV Level 1 and Level 2 certifications. In addition, PAX
Global obtained TQM, PayPass and PayWave card certifications.
According to The Nilson Report, the Group has been ranked one of
the top 10 global POS terminal solutions providers since 2007. With
international industry certifications, a solid reputation and customers’
trust, the Group is able to capture huge overseas market share and
opportunities from active mergers and acquisitions in the industry.

NFC payments march on

Merchants are widely deploying Near Field Communications (“NFC")
contactless devices, which proves that it is a new trend in the industry.
One of the examples of the technology adoption is Google Wallet. It
allows consumers’ credit information to be stored in a virtual wallet,
and an NFC-enabled device at terminals can obtain that data and
complete transactions. In several European countries, China and India,
NFC payment systems have either been applied or are being tested
in public transportation systems or ticket boxes. The new technology
application increases the demand for NFC payment devices. The
Group's mainstream products are mostly NFC compatible.
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BEE 2 mED

Mass opportunities from EMV migration

Most European countries, Hong Kong, Singapore, Russia and most
Latin American countries have completed the EMV migration. New
Zealand and Australia are going through the EMV migration process
now. Recently, Visa and MasterCard have announced their policies
encouraging wider deployment of EMV cards and POS terminals in
the United States. Most non-EMV complied existing POS terminals
have to be replaced by EMV complied ones before 2017 in the United
States. That should generate huge demand for EMV complied POS
terminals in addition to normal replacements in the United States in the
coming years. Other countries such as Japan and other Commonwealth
of Independent States countries will likely migrate to EMV in the
foreseeable future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The key financial figures for the year ended 31 December 2011 are
extracted as follows:

Revenue WA

Gross profit E5

Other income HA YA

Selling expenses SHER

Administrative expenses THEH

Operating profit Fea el

Income tax expense FRiSH 2

Profit for the year attributable to RARE=FEE AEE
equity holders of the Company FEBH

EBITDA EBITDA

Research and development expenses #iff25 52
(incluaed in administrative expenses) (1577 EHA)

Total current assets MEVEELRT
Total non-current assets IERBEEMRTE
Total assets BERT

Total liabilities aEBE

Net current assets MEEEFE
Total equity iR ER

EMVERHERNE XEE

AEEEMNER - &5 - FnE - REHMK
ZH N T EMBERELTK TEMVER - #A
B AR A F g IEFEETTEMVIBRS © fR3iT - Visafl
MasterCardE B ER @ SEME B E 2 BER
ABEMVIZER) RHAPOSA IR - ZEBIE R EB(HIR
B AEMVIZERPOS KB N BE — T —+
FATH FRFEEMVIZXERIPOSIIHHL « B T IEH
BB BB EMVA BB ERREFEERH
BEHFAEMVIZERPOSK IR KE LB KHNTH
Sk o HAbBIR a0 B AR M E A B EE B R 7] 5By
R ATREHEITEMVIERS o

B % E1 R
BE-T——F+-A=+—BLFENEEH
BRI T -

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-H=+—-HLFE

2011 2010
—ET——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHET +/(-)
1,103,180 723,610 +52%
391,702 291,870 +34%
41,712 27,390 +52%
(124,100) (74,371) +67%
(101,851) (72,381) +41%
207,463 172,508 +20%
(25,668) (27,085) -5%
181,795 145,423 +25%
210,596 175,121 +20%
(52,695) (34,899) +51%
As at 31 December
B+=—A=+—H
2011 2010
—ZT——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHET +/(-)
1,994,994 1,493,935 +34%
11,044 11,425 -3%
2,006,038 1,505,360 +33%
404,884 218,249 +86%
1,590,110 1,275,686 +25%
1,601,154 1,287,111 +24%
BERREHEAR AR —T——FFR
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BE=+t=A=+—H JJ:fFE
2011 2010
—B——F —E-EF +(-)
PER SHARE DATA FRE
Earnings per share for profit RARERTFAA
attributable to equity holders (a2 B EF
of the Company
— Basic (HK$) —ER(ETT) 0.175 0.194 -10%
— Diluted (HK$) —#E(ET) 0.175 0.194 -10%
For the year ended 31 December
BEt+t-HA=+—HLFE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-EF
FINANCIAL RATIOS Bt &
Gross profit margin EF= 35.5% 40.3%
EBITDA margin EBITDAZX 19.0% 24.2%
Net profit margin SFRE R 16.5% 20.1%
Revenue WA

Turnover increased by 52% or HK$379.6 million to HK$1,103.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2011 from HK$723.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2010. Turnover from the China market
grew by 33% year on year or HK$189.0 million to HK$755.3 million.
Similarly, turnover from overseas market grew by HK$190.6 million to
HK$347.9 million, representing a growth of 121%.

Sales by Product Category

2%

1%

2010 2011
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BEEZAWED T

POS terminals POS#R i
Consumer activated devices THEEIRIERE
Contactless devices I ERRE
Services A7

Others* E >

* Amount mainly represented accessory items sold to customers. Examples
of such accessory items were download cable, telephone line, thermal
paper, sticker and barcode scanning gun etc.

POS Terminals

Turnover from the sale of POS terminals increased by 52% to HK$945.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2011 from HK$623.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2010.Turnover growth has been
driven by the increase in both China and overseas sale during the year.
Emerging markets in EMEA (”Europe, Middle East and Africa”), LACIS
("Latin America and Commonwealth of Independent States”) and
APAC (“Asia Pacific”) regional business units contributed significantly
to growth in overseas sale.

Meanwhile, bankcard payment has been gaining increasingly popularity
in China. Financial institutions and third party payment service providers
have been aggressively building their POS networks in order to capture
the benefits from the rising usage of electronic payment and high levels
of retail consumption in China. Furthermore, recent state policies have
also encouraged the building of electronic transaction networks, which
further fuels the fast growth of POS terminals demand.

Consumer Activated Devices

Turnover from the sale of consumer activated devices achieved
significant growth, which increased by 121% to HK$116.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2011 from HK$52.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2010. The strong growth is mainly attributable
to one particular popular model equipped with additional built-in
contactless card reader function that also supports magnetic card and
IC card reader.

Contactless Readers

Turnover from the sale of contactless readers decreased to HK$19.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2011, decreased by 12% from
HK$22.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2010. The fall in
demand was mainly due to the popularity of one particular consumer
activated device model which has built-in contactless card reader as
well as other extra functions.

Services

Turnover from provision of services decreased by 4% to HK$13.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2011 as compared to HK$14.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2010. Maintenance services
made up the bulk of service income and were mainly generated in
Hong Kong. The slight fall in turnover was mainly due to the drop in
product modification fee during the accounting year.

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=1+—HLEE

2011 2010
—B-——f —T-T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHEIT +/(-)
945,107 623,448 +52%
116,206 52,650 +121%
19,904 22,695 -12%
13,749 14,260 -4%
8,214 10,557 -22%
1,103,180 723,610 +52%
*  AESHEIEREARSLENERYE - AERMEE
BEETHERS  BiEE BB - BRI
$HR S o
POS#& i 1
HEPOSIK M S X EREE T —SF+=

A=+—HIEFEN623.48 BT IN52%E
HE-_Z——F+_-_A=1—H1FEMHM5.1
BEBIT - AEEENARFARTRELEINEE
LT o B AFTETISREN - AR EIEM
(TEMEA]) ~ 7 T =M R IBEEEE ([ LACIS)) Fgs
K& ([APAC ) Rytb [ 2/ 5 EpEEINEE 2 &
RBE -

B R - RIT R REF B BENRTT - R
FIHNE =7 2 AR L e P 1B IR 5 <7 1% S /IPOS

| Wi ET BRBREZNE TN RE
T EHEPH RIS o 5N - T FRBIE

BREEDZBE TR PMMHEL - THE— TR
HPOSER I T R IR

SHEERERE

HEHBERERENEEREE LA mERE
TE-EFE+ A=+ HIEFENS27TAEE
TENM2VI%EHE-_TE——F+-"A=+—8H
IFFEM1162EBEBTT - AR EERAE
— RIZECIHALSE - AEFEINNEIEEBEFR

BRI - R SOREEMICRESSS

B RRE
HEIEZEBEAERRBENEXEEmEE 2 —
TE+ A=+ HIFERN276EETHD
R EHE_ZT—F+_A=T—HLEFE
RI19.9B BB - BR THMEZHRE—MIRA
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32%

@ China market
PEIT 5

Overseas market
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For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—-HLFE

2011 2010
—E——fF —E—TF +/(-)
China market ==E e -1 755,329 566,340 +33%
Overseas market BINTTS 347,851 157,270 +121%
1,103,180 723,610 +52%

Turnover generated from the China market increased by 33% to
HK$755.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2011, from
HK$566.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2010. Relatively
low POS penetration rate, strong economic growth, high levels of retail
consumption, and the successful promotion and acceptance of bank
cards, loyalty cards, and social security cards generated demand for
POS terminals. In addition, major merchant service providers, financial
institutions and licensed third party payment service providers in China
continually placed POS terminals in merchants and provided related
services to capture market share in one of the fastest growing markets
in the world.

Turnover generated from the overseas market increased by 121%
to HK$347.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2011 from
HK$157.3 million last accounting year. Overseas market turnover
contributed to 32% of total turnover compared with 22% last
accounting year. The increase was mainly attributable to increased
segmental sales in EMEA, LACIS and APAC regions. The Group has
continuously expanded its international market presence in countries
including Canada, Dominica and Brazil in the Americas, Uzbekistan,
Kazakhstan and Tajikistan in Middle Asia, Latvia, Finland and France in
Europe, Kuwait and Turkey in the Middle East, Nigeria in Africa as well
as Japan and New Zealand in Asia Pacific. As at 31 December 2011, we
had over 30 (2010: 25) overseas distributors and partners worldwide.
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Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2011 was 35.5%,
dropping 4.8 points as compared with 40.3% last accounting year as a
result of lower average selling price given keen competition in China. In
several overseas markets, PAX Global took a proactive and aggressive
marketing approach to penetrate to the new markets. We consider that
our gross profit margin maintains at a healthy level.

Other Income

Other income is comprised primarily of value added tax refund, interest
income and subsidy income. It increased by 52% to HK$41.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2011 from HK$27.4 million last
accounting year. The increase is mainly due to the increment of value
added tax refund and interest income.

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses increased by 67% to HK$124.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2011, from HK$74.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2010. The growth in expenses was in line with turnover
growth. The increase was mainly attributable to an increase in (i)
employee benefit expenses associated with the increase in wage and
the average number of sales and marketing staffs; (ii) maintenance
service expenses; (iii) advertising and promotional expenses; and (iv)
travelling expenses.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 41% to HK$101.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2011 from HK$72.4 million in the
preceding financial year mainly reflecting the increase in research
and development costs and corporate office expenses after listing in
December 2010.

Net Profit and Net Profit Margin
As a result of the foregoing, the net profit for the year attributable to
the equity holders of the Company increased by 25% to HK$181.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2011 from HK$145.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The net profit margin decreased to 16.5% for year ended 31 December
2011 from 20.1% in the preceding financial year mainly as a result of
our reduction in gross profit margin but which was partly offset by the
decrease in effective tax rate.
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OUTLOOK

To this day, PAX Global has sold more than 2 million POS terminals
to over 60 countries and district regions and worked with over 30
distributors and partners worldwide since the establishment of the
Group. In a report issued by The Nilson Report in September 2011,
PAX Global was ranked number 7 globally in terms of volume of POS
terminals shipped in 2010.

CHINA MARKET

PAX Global is one of the leading players in POS terminal solutions
market in China with major merchant services providers, financial
institutions and licensed third party payment service providers as
some of our largest customers. China is one of the fastest growing
economies in the world with huge commercial growth potential yet to
be tapped. Over the past several years the surge in consumer spending
in China and the public’s increasing demand for safer and more secure
payment methods has formed the foundation upon which the POS
terminal solutions industry can flourish. Research has indicated that
the number of POS terminals installed in China is less than 3 terminals
per 1,000 people in 2010 as compared to an average of 23 installed
POS terminals per 1,000 people in certain mature markets. With such
a low POS terminal penetration rate, the increased acceptance of card
payment transactions, the ease of obtaining credit cards by consumers
and the PRC government’s support in developing the country’s
electronic payment infrastructure are just a few factors expected to
continually drive the demand for POS terminals in China.

POS terminal buyers such as financial institutions are expected to
continue to aggressively install terminals in merchants in order to
develop their card acquiring businesses and take profit from one of the
fastest growing payment markets in the world. In 2012, some licensed
third party payment service providers are expected to install terminals
in merchants. Thus, this should further improve the POS terminal
penetration rate. With respect to the China market, the Group will
continue to focus on R&D, technical support and service, strengthening
client relationships and sales networks to consolidate our leading
position in China.

OVERSEAS MARKET

Overseas market including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan accounts
for more than 80% of the global market shares. Therefore, it is
definitely a huge market for PAX Global. Overseas market provides
extra business growth and diversifies our business risk. Since year
2000, PAX Global has been investing extensively in R&D to ensure
our mainstream products to comply if not exceed most international
industrial standards and are accredited with international industrial
recognized certifications. Over the past ten years, we have invested
significant resources in building our sales network, worked tirelessly
with our international partners and formed specialized teams to focus
on each of the individual markets, including EMEA, LACIS, APAC and
USCA (the “United States and Canada”). In recent years, the significant
sales growth in overseas market has attested to our efforts.
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USCA is one of the largest markets in the world. According to The
Nilson Report issued in September 2011, more than 2.3 million POS
terminals were deployed in USCA, accounting for approximately 16%
of the global POS shipments in year 2010. Furthermore, the forward
moving adoption schedule of the EMV standard is expected to be a
catalyst to the market growth. As it is one of our Group’s strategic
focus markets, we are expanding the regional team there to capture
more market share. In addition, the Group is seeking merger and
acquisition or partnership opportunities which can either provide
technological know-how or access to sales channels for us to penetrate
into certain markets more easily. We will also put more effort to
enter other BRIC (Brazil, Russia, India and South Africa) countries.
Management believes that overseas market will maintain their rapid
growth in the immediate future.

OVERALL MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES

Looking forward, PAX Global will continue to focus on consolidating
and enhancing our strong position in China through (i) continuous
development of innovative products that meet customers’ demands
and capture new market segments; (ii) enhancement of our R&D
capability; (i) expansion and optimization of our sales and after-sales
service networks and enlargement of the scope of business and our
market share in major international markets; (iv) potential merger and
acquisition or partnership opportunities that can enhance technological
know-how or market share.

By levering on our strong position in POS terminal solutions market in
China and consolidated international market experience, we believe
that we will be able to capture the rapid development of China and
emerging markets as well as other important international markets. We
believe that we are on the path to becoming one of the leading global
POS terminal solutions providers.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
During the year, the main source of funding to the Group was proceeds
from over-allotment of shares pursuant to the Global Offering. Certain
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financial data are summarised as follows: S
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2011 2010
—=E——fF —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Cash at bank and on hand RITEFLERS 1,152,291 1,066,526
Net current assets mEVEEFE 1,590,110 1,275,686
Net cash (used in)/generated esEB) (FrA) A
from operating activities e FE (19,488) 118,220
Net cash generated from financing activities MEEHELMNIES HE 91,674 699,995
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
Current ratio (times) BN R (f3) 4.9 6.8
Quick ratio (times) B K (fF) 4.2 6.2

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had cash at bank and on
hand and short-term bank deposits of HK$1,152.3 million (2010:
HK$1,066.5 million) and no short-term borrowings (2010: Nil). As at 31
December 2011, the Group reported net current assets of HK$1,590.1
million, as compared with HK$1,275.7 million as at 31 December 2010.
For the year ended 31 December 2011, net cash used in operating
activities was HK$19.5 million, as compared with net cash generated
from operating activities of HK$118.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2010. Net cash inflow from financing activities for the year
2011 was HK$91.7 million mainly attributable to the proceeds from
over-allotment of shares pursuant to the Global Offering, as compared
with HK$700.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2010 which
was mainly generated from the Global Offering.

Capital Structure and Details of Charges

As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any borrowings
(2010: Nil). As at 31 December 2011, approximately HK$315.3 million,
HK$709.5 million, HK$125.9 million and HK$1.5 million (2010:
HK$229.0 million, HK$746.7 million, HK$89.8 million and HK$1.0
million) of the Group’s cash balances were denominated in Renminbi
("RMB"), Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), US dollar (“US$") and Euro
("EUR") respectively.
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Significant Investment
Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group has no significant
investment held as at 31 December 2011.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2011 (2010: Nil).

Use of Proceeds
The net proceeds raised from the Global Offering received by the
Company were approximately HK$805.9 million. The net proceeds
from the Global Offering were intended to be utilized over three years
from 2011 to 2013.

As at 31 December 2011, the planned and utilized amounts of usage
of total net proceeds are as follows:

Enhancing research and development effort NPT SN
Expanding distribution network R IHAAR
Potential merger and acquisition pegetidic

General working capital —MREEE®

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets
Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no specific plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2011.

Exchange Rates Exposure

The Group derives its turnover, makes purchases and incurs expenses
denominated mainly in RMB, HK$ and US$. The majority of assets
and liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$ and US$, and there are
no significant assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies.
Currently, the Group has not entered into agreements or purchased
instruments to hedge the Group’s exchange rate risks. Any material
fluctuation in the exchange rates of HK$ or RMB may have an impact
on the operating results of the Group.

Management considers the foreign exchange risk with respect to US$ is
not significant as HK$ is pegged to US$ and transactions denominated
in US$ are mainly carried out by entities with the same functional
currency. The exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. The Group manages foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.
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Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2011.

Human Resources and Remuneration Policies
The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2011
was 463. The following table shows a breakdown of employees of the
Group by functions as at 31 December 2011:
Management EIEE
Sales and after-sales services and marketing

Research and development i

Quality assurance B
Administration and human resources THREANEIR
Accounting g%

Production, procurement and inventory control

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages are comprehensive
and competitive. Employees are remunerated with a fixed monthly
income plus annual performance related bonuses. The Group also
sponsors selected employees to attend external training courses that
suit the needs of the Group's businesses.

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting princjples) measures, such
as FBITDA, are used for assessing the Group'’s performance. These non-GAAP
measures are not expressly permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong
and may not be comparable to simiarly titled measures for other companies.
Accoradingly, such non-GAAP measures should not be considered as an
alternative to operating income as an /ndicator of the operating performance
of the Group or as an alternative to cash flows from operating activities as
a measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP measures /s provided sofely to
enhance the overall unaerstanaing of the Group current financial performance.
Aaaitionally because the Group has historically reported certan non-GAAP
results to investors, the Group considers the inclusion of non-GAAP measures
provides consistency in our #inancial reporing.
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of
Directors (the “Board”) in ensuring effective leadership and control of
the Company and transparency and accountability of all operations.

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable
efforts to identifying and formulating corporate governance practices
appropriate to the Company’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”)
as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

The Board has approved the adoption of the revised CG Code which
will be effective from 1 April 2012.

The Company has applied in formulating its corporate governance
practices the Principles and complied with all of the Code Provisions for
the year.

The Board periodically reviews and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance or compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements. The Board also reviews the Group’s employee
handbook, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, to ensure that operations are
conducted in accordance with the standards of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

Specific enquiry had been made to all the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Company has also established written guidelines with exact terms
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules for securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Company.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors
should make decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company
which include the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to board papers
and relevant information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the senior management officers.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge
its responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company and
to the exercising of independent judgement.

The Board currently comprises 6 members, consisting of 3 executive
Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors.

The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

NIE Guoming (Chairman)

JIJANG Hongchun (Chref Executive Officer)
LI Wenjin

Independent non-executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

The biographical information of the Directors of the Company and their
relationship among the members of the Board, if any, are provided in
the “Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for
the appointment, succession planning of Directors.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures which shall expire with
retirement by rotation once every three years and subject to re-election.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company. Besides,
the Company will arrange and provide finance for suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of
its Directors.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings were held four times during the year for
reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance,
for approving the final results for the year ended 31 December 2010,
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2011 and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the four regular
quarterly meetings of the Board (not including other ad hoc meetings
of the Board held from time to time), Audit Committee meetings,
Nomination Committee meeting, Remuneration Committee meeting
and Independent Board Committee meeting during the year ended 31
December 2011 is set out below:

I BEERERES
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PREFTRBRIEL  BETHERE=F
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EZEERNRESHERER
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MBREERR  HABRE_T-TF+_A
ST RALEFERFEE BE_T——FXA
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

Audit

Committee

Meeting

BEREEE

Name of Directors EEpng =
Nie Guoming E B N/A & A
Jiang Hongchun Btk N/A 75
Li Wenjin ZXE N/A 75
Yip Wai Ming H(Z8R 2/2
Wu Min 2 8 2/2
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles R 212

* The Directors are not required to attend the rest of the meetings which
mainly deal with implementation of executive policies and administrative
routine.

BRHEETRY
Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Regular
REEEE FHEES Meetings
= ] ERER
N/A i N/A 7@ B 4/4
N/A TNiE A N/A 7@ B 4/4
IVAl 171 4/4
IVAl 171 4/4
IVAl 171 4/4
N/A i N/A i@ B 4/4
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary attends all regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other Board and committee meetings to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder of the
Company or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s bye-laws also
contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in
which such Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
Chairman, Mr. Nie Guoming, and the Chief Executive Officer (the
“CEOQ"), Mr. Jiang Hongchun, are segregated in order to ensure a clear
distinction between the responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO.
There are clear divisions of responsibilities of management of the Board
and the day-to-day management of the Company’s business between
the Chairman and the CEO to ensure a balance of power and authority
of the Board for decision-making.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practices. With the support of the Company Secretary and
the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate information,
which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable, and appropriate
briefing on issues arising at Board meetings, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

The CEO focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. He/She is in charge of the
Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The CEO is
also responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating the
organisational structure, control systems and internal procedures and
processes for the Board's approval.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgment to the Board. By taking the lead in managing issues involving
potential conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive Directors make various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Board at all times met
the requirements of Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his/her independence pursuant
to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, which confirmed
to the Company that he/ she has met the independence guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website
and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are independent
non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of
each Board committee as at the date of this report is set out below:

Audit Committee

YIP Wai Ming (Charrmarn)
WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Nomination Committee
WU Min (Chairman)

YIP Wai Ming

LI Wenjin

Remuneration Committee
YIP Wai Ming (Charrmar)

WU Min

LI Wenjin

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company'’s expenses.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 1 December
2010 with written terms of reference. The Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors (including one independent
non-executive Director who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise).
None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of
the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:
(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any

significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the external auditors, their fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties
of the Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to
“A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2011 to review the financial results and reports, financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control system and
risk management review and processes and the reappointment of the
external auditors.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

There is no different view taken by the Audit Committee from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2011
has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on 1
December 2010. The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board,
developing and formulating relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessment
of the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
requirements of the business of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary. The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 84 and 85, Mr. Nie
Guoming, executive Director and Dr. Wu Min, independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, shall retire by rotation and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2012 annual general
meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election at the 2012 annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company’s circular dated 23 March 2012 contains detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on
1 December 2010. The primary objectives of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations on and approving the
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management
and other related matters. The Human Resources Department is
responsible for collection and administration of the human resources
data and making recommendations to the Remuneration Committee
for consideration. The Remuneration Committee shall consult the
Chairman and/ or the Board about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages. The
Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31
December 2011.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2011.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 44 to 45.

INTERNAL CONTROL

For the internal control system of the Company, the Board has
developed the Group's internal control systems and risk assessment
and management. The Board has overall responsibility for reviewing
and maintaining an adequate and effective internal control system to
safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the assets of the Group.
During the year, the Board has conducted reviews of the internal
control system and considered the internal control system of the Group
has been implemented effectively.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company in
respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2011
amounted to approximately HK$1,000,000.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the
Company'’s bye-laws. Details of such rights and procedures to demand
a poll are included in all circulars to shareholders during the year and
the procedures for conducting a poll will be explained during the
proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the website of the Stock Exchange on the
business day following the shareholders’ meeting.

The Board recognises that the general meetings of the Company
provide a forum for communication between the shareholders
and the Board. The Chairman of the Board, or at his absence, an
executive Director, as well as chairmen of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, or in their absence,
other members of the respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, will be available to answer questions at
future shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast
of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt
with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.paxglobal.com.hk, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.

On behalf of the Board

NIE Guoming
Charrman
Hong Kong, 15 March 2012

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

BREREFNRIREERF

BOREM RERRA G 2SIRBBRERR IR
Fr o SRR RRZ RRIARA - 2SIZRBURE

RZIEMRIEFFS  SRFAREBRIRZMAAE
B WHRNE LRRIREBIRERRZEF -

BRBIRERRERFGRR
FERSE A2 FTAR s I

gErBER -

EZWER - ARARRASRUIRREESS
BRZTE - BERETFR(MBRELRE) BT
EFURRERZES  FHZEEREZZES
HONER)BYUEFL B SRR (R EFRE
HE)EZEeKE  SHFERREREH B

EIRM o

ARBERAEREEAFHREFLDRAHESR °

ARREBEINREREE ZBBIAR - BES
RERABHREBIREERDTEBLEHE - U
BRARRER - REEEAIFREIZALRMH
BREH -

RIBEEARER  KXAARKRABEBW
www.paxglobal.com.hk + FIE AR B EHER
REE - BB ER  EBRERBEZR&M

RREEE

E
=EH
/B T —_F=A+THHA



Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the development and sales of point-of-sale
("POS") products and provision of related services.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical
segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 46.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2010: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

No charitable donations were made by the Group during the year (2010:
HK$1.0 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PAX Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the issuance of in aggregate no more than 10% in nominal amount
of the aggregate of Shares in issue on the Listing Date, representing
100,000,000 shares (subject to the terms of the Scheme and the
relevant provisions under the Listing Rules) under the Scheme adopted
by a resolution of the Board on 1 December 2010.

The purpose of the Scheme is to reward Participants who have
contributed or will contribute to the Group and to encourage
Participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and
its Shares for the benefit of the Company and its Shareholders as a
whole.

The Scheme was effective from 1 December 2010 and unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain valid and effective for the period of
10 years from that date. Up to date of the report, no share option was
granted under the Scheme.

For details of the PAX Share Option Scheme, please refer to note 22(d)
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had no reserves available
for distribution as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended) (2010: Nil). However, the Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of HK$1,230,276,000 (2010:
HK$1,129,204,000) may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws and there was no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 114.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
NIE Guoming

JIJANG Hongchun

LI Wenjin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 84 and 85, one-third
of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at least once every three years at the annual general meeting of the
Company.

Mr. Nie Guoming and Dr. Wu Min will retire and, being eligible will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, each of the executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years from 20 December 2010 unless and until terminated by either the
Company or the Directors giving to the other a notice of not less than
three months.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors had any existing or
proposed service contracts with the Company or any member of the
Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 6 to 9.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors have an interest in any business constituting a
competing business to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Director and Chief Executive
Officer have an interest in shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
notified to the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section 336
of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2011, the Company had
been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests and
short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share
capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in

respect of the Directors and Chief Executive Officer.

Name of shareholders

Hi Sun Technology (China)
Limited

Digital Investment Limited
(Note 3)

HAOQ Capital China Fund L.P.
(Note 3)
891 Venture Limited (Note 4)

Dream River Limited (Note 5)

HAO Capital Fund Il L.P.
(Note 5)
HAO Partners L.P. (Note 6)

Hao Partners (Holdings)
Limited (Note 7)

Liu Yangsheng (Note 8)

Bao Lei (Note 9)

FIL Limited

BRREH

mEEHR(RE)
BRAF]

Digital Investment Limited
(GEE)

HAO Capital China Fund L.P.
(Ff5E3)

891 Venture Limited (Kt34)

Dream River Limited (F3F5)

HAO Capital Fund Il L.P.
(P 3ES)
HAO Partners L.P.(Kf3¥6)

Hao Partners (Holdings) Limited ( Fff
#7)

2158 (II3E8)

RE(M39)

FIL Limited

FRRRRBRAD RAEABERD 2 S
15879}
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Approximate

Class of Total number percentage
securities of Shares of shareholding
(Note 1) (Note 2)

FHER g Y 4 BRZERE DL
(FfizE1) (Ffi5E2)

Ordinary 444,000,000 (L) 42.79%
Ordinary 118,400,000 (L) 11.41%
Ordinary 118,400,000 (L) 11.41%
Ordinary 118,400,000 (L) 11.41%
Ordinary 118,400,000 (L) 11.41%
Ordinary 118,400,000 (L) 11.41%
Ordinary 118,400,000 (L) 11.41%
Ordinary 118,400,000 (L) 11.41%
Ordinary 236,800,000 (L) 22.82%
Ordinary 236,800,000 (L) 22.82%
Ordinary 73,662,000 (L) 7.10%
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Notes:

1

The letter “L"” denotes a long position in Shares, the letter “S” denotes a
short position in Shares.

The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2011.

Digital Investment Limited is owned as to 95% by HAO Capital China Fund
L.P. and 5% by Mr. Max Burger. As such, HAO Capital China Fund L.P.
is deemed to be interested in the 118,400,000 Shares owned by Digital
Investment by virtue of the SFO.

891 Venture Limited is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and is the general partner of HAO Capital China Fund L.P. As such, 891
Venture Limited is deemed to be interested in 118,400,000 Shares owned
by Digital Investment by virtue of the SFO.

Dream River Limited is wholly owned by HAO Capital Fund Il L.P. As such,
HAQO Capital Fund Il L.P. is deemed to be interested in 118,400,000 Shares
owned by Dream River by virtue of the SFO.

HAO Partners L.P. is the general partner of HAO Capital Fund Il L.P. As
such, HAO Partners L.P. is deemed to be interested in 118,400,000 Shares
owned by Dream River by virtue of the SFO.

Hao Partners (Holdings) Limited is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
is the general partner of HAO Partners L.P.. As such, HAO Capital L.P. is
deemed to be interested in 118,400,000 Shares owned by Dream River by
virtue of the SFO.

As Mr. Liu Yangsheng controls more than one-third of the voting power at
the general meetings of 891 Venture Limited and Hao Partners (Holdings)
Limited respectively, he is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of
236,800,000 Shares owned by Digital Investment Limited and Dream River
Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Bao Lei, the spouse of Liu Yangsheng, is deemed to be interested in Liu
Yangsheng's interest.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has occupied and rented office premises owned by Hi Sun
in Beijing under a tenancy agreement (Details are set out in note 29(a)
to the Financial Statements). Based on the agreed annual rental of each
of the tenancy agreement, as each of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than the profit ratio) of the transactions contemplated under
the tenancy agreements are on an annual basis less than 0.1%, the
tenancy agreements will constitute de minimis continuing connected
transactions which are exempt from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

There was no related party transaction which constituted a connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction not exempted under
Rule 14A.31 or Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2011. The Group has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of such transaction.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2011.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION AND CONFLICTS OF
INTERESTS

Hi Sun has pursuant to the deed of non-competition dated 1 December
2010 between the Company and Hi Sun, undertaken to the Company
that, among other things, at any time during which the Shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange or any stock exchange recognized under
the SFO and for so long as it remains the controlling shareholder of the
Company, Hi Sun will not, and will procure that its subsidiaries (other
than the Group) will not directly or indirectly engage or otherwise be
interested in the design, manufacture and/or sale of POS products and
the provision of related services in the PRC, Hong Kong or any part of
the world in which any member of the Group may from time to time
operate. The undertaking does not apply to Hi Sun’s interests in the
Shares (including the exercise of any right as a shareholder) and any
interests held by Hi Sun and its associates in up to 5% of any class
of listed securities of a company that engages in the business of the
Group.

Hi Sun has undertaken to the Company that, if any time that the Group
or our independent non-executive Directors have reasonable cause to
believe that Hi Sun may be in breach of the non-compete undertaking,
against undertaking of the Company to keep the information received
confidential except for disclosures of such information as may be
necessary to comply with our legal or regulatory obligations, or such
information that is already in the public domain other than as a result
of our breach of the confidentiality undertaking or for the purposes
of enforcement of the non-compete undertaking, Hi Sun will at our
or our independent non-executive Directors’ request provide all such
information that it possesses and may be lawfully disclosed pertaining
to such request so as to enable us or our independent non-executive
Directors to make an informed assessment as to whether or not there
has in fact been a breach of the non-compete undertaking. On 12
January 2012, Hi Sun signed an annual declaration of compliance with
the Deed of Non-competition. Hi Sun has complied with the non-
compete undertaken given above.
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None of the Directors of Hi Sun nor the Company have any interest
in any competing business that is discloseable under Rule 8.10(1) and
Rule 8.10(2), respectively, of the Listing Rules. In respect of any other
conflicts of interest that may arise between the Group and Hi Sun
Group, common Directors between the two groups or any Director
with an interest in the relevant transaction(s) will be required to abstain
from voting on the relevant Board resolutions.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2011 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases

—  thelargest supplier 28.7%
—  five largest suppliers combined 50.8%
Sales

—  the largest customer 19.0%
—  five largest customers combined 55.9%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers noted
above.

PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate in
a defined contribution retirement scheme or the Group or Company
set up in accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance. Under the scheme, the employees are required to contribute
5% of their monthly salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,000 and they
can choose to make additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries
up to a maximum of HK$1,000 (the “Mandatory Contributions”).
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’'s Mandatory
Contributions upon their retirement at the age of 65 years old, death
or total incapacity.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Group is required to contribute an
amount to certain retirement benefit schemes based on approximately
7% to 20% of the wages for the year of those workers in the PRC.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those workers of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained during the year the amount of public float as
required under the Listing Rules.
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

Pursuant to the compliance adviser agreement dated 16 November
2010 entered into between the Company and First Shanghai Capital
Limited, First Shanghai Capital Limited has been appointed as the
compliance adviser as required under the Listing Rules for the period
from the Listing Date to the date on which the Company complies with
Rule 13.46 of the Listing Rules in respect of the Company’s financial
results for the year ended 31 December 2011. First Shanghai Capital
Limited has received a fee for acting as the Company’s compliance
adviser during the period.

As at 31 December 2011, an employee of First Shanghai Securities
Limited held 6,000 shares of the Company. First Shanghai Securities
Limited is a fellow subsidiary of First Shanghai Capital Limited.

As notified by First Shanghai Capital Limited, save as disclosed above,
neither First Shanghai Capital Limited nor its respective Directors,
employees or associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any
interest in the shares of the Company, or had any options or rights to
subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe for the shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2011.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Nie Guoming
Charrman
Hong Kong, 15 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of PAX Global Technology Limited
(inconporated in Bermuda with limited hability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PAX Global
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 113, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2011,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 March 2012
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Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—HLEE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B3 FHET FET
Revenue WA 5 1,103,180 723,610
Cost of sales SHE A 7 (711,478) (431,740)
Gross profit ES 391,702 291,870
Other income Hug A 5 41,712 27,390
Selling expenses HEMY 7 (124,100) (74,371)
Administrative expenses THEA 7 (101,851) (72,381)
Operating profit/profit before KR, TRATEEAT
income tax S ) 207,463 172,508
Income tax expense FriSfif s 10 (25,668) (27,085)
Profit for the year attributable to RRAREREAA
equity holders of the Company FEMEF SR T 181,795 145,423
Earnings per share for the profit FARRAERTEE AR
attributable to equity holders of s Al 2 AR )
the Company during the year (L ERAETLE5)
(expressed in HK$ per share)
— Basic — B 12 0.175 0.194
— Diluted —#E 12 0.175 0.194

The notes on pages 53 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ Z853& 1138 2 M iR A F @K 2 HP I

paN

financial statements. 7 e
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences arising on
translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries

Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company

F RIEF

Hitp 2 K28
BEEINTB AR
MBHREL ZEN Z8

AR ERFE AENG
FRARHKHEBE

The notes on pages 53 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

=
%
2

N

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

2011
—g——f
HK$'000
Tz

181,795

27,403

209,198

2010
—E-TF
HK$'000
TET

145,423

17,526

162,949
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
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ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Leasehold land

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables
Deposits and other receivables
Restricted cash

Cash at bank and on hand

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

aE

FRBEE

W% - BB RERE
HELTH

FRBDEERE

RBEE

&

FEU R R N FE I R 1
B R E AR
XRHRE
RITRFLERE

RBEERE

BERE

Rz

RO R EEFE A
MR it

BeA

G

EEEE

The notes on pages 53 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes

(pEsd

14
15

18
19
19
20
21

22
23

As at 31 December

W+t=—A=+—8H
2011 2010
—B——F —E—EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
10,809 11,194
235 231
11,044 11,425
305,666 148,520
503,715 269,042
17,305 7,001
16,017 2,846
1,152,291 1,066,526
1,994,994 1,493,935
2,006,038 1,505,360
103,773 100,000
1,497,381 1,187,111
1,601,154 1,287,111
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

meBEERER(E

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Taxation payable

Total current liabilities and
liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

On behalf of the Board
REEFE

NIE GUOMING

=B
Director

EF

The notes on pages 53 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

a8f

REAE
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FERTEIR

RBRERAERE

EER A ERE

RBEEFE
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Notes

(pEsd

24
24

N

)

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—8
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
249,570 143,033
140,414 55,735
14,900 19,481
404,884 218,249
2,006,038 1,505,360
1,590,110 1,275,686
1,601,154 1,287,111
LI WENJIN
ENE
Director
2

BERMMEERAT
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Balance Sheet
BEESERXR

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Deposits and other receivables
Amount due from a subsidiary
Cash at bank and on hand

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals

Total current liabilities and liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

On behalf of the Board
REEER

NIE GUOMING
=E B
Director

EBF

The notes on pages 53 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE TFHET FET
16 528,103 528,103
528,103 528,103
19 2,016 -
17 90,000 -
21 702,503 697,082
794,519 697,082
1,322,622 1,225,185
22 103,773 100,000
23 1,216,676 1,120,807
1,320,449 1,220,807
24 2,173 4,378
2,173 4,378
1,322,622 1,225,185
792,346 692,704
1,320,449 1,220,807
LI WENJIN
=XE
Director

EBF

N

)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

meEREESER

For the year ended
31 December 2011
Balance at 1 January 2011

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences arising on translation
of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries

Total comprehensive income

Transaction with owners
Over-allotment of shares pursuant to the
Global Offering (note 22(c))

Balance at
31 December 2011

For the year ended
31 December 2010
Balance at 1 January 2010

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences arising on translation
of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners

Allotment of shares pursuant to the
Reorganisation

Shares issued under the
capitalisation issue

Shares issued pursuant to the Global Offering

Balance at
31 December 2010

BE-E--F
TZA=t-ALEE
RZF——F-F-Az&s

EYE
AR

Bt 2ERE
BEBIMIBAR
HBRRELL
EXz®

SERELE

RERAZRS
REeREERBLY
IR (HiEE22(0))

Bt 2ERE
HEBIMIBAR
HBRRELL
EXz®

PERELE

RERAZRS
REESARZRH

REENE T2
BEIED
RESFEERTIRND

RZE-2&
TZA=T-A2EH

Share
capital
R&
HK$000
TiEn

100,000

3773

103,773

25,000

49,000
26,000

100,000

100,000

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARBERE AL

Reserves
ffe

Share Capital  Exchange
premium reserve reserve
RiyEE BAGE HERE
HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000
TiEn TR TiEn
1,129,204 (414,978) 36,854
- - 27,403
- - 27,403
101,072 - -
1,230,276 (414,978) 64,257
- 113,125 19,328
- - 17,526
- - 17,526
503,103 (528,103) -
(49,000) - -
675,101 - -
1,129,204 (528,103) -
1,129,204 (414,978) 36,854

Retained
earnings
REEA
HK$'000

TR

436,031

181,795

181,795

617,826

290,608

145423

145,423

436,031

Total
&t
HK$'000
Thn

1,187,111

181,795

27403

209,198

101,072

1,497,381

423,061

145,423

17,526

162,949

(25,000)

(49,000)
675,101

601,101

1,187,111

Total
equity
ERAE
HKS$'000
THR

1,287,111

181,795

27,403

209,198

104,845

1,601,154

423,061

145423

17,526

162,949

701,101

701,101

1,287,111

The notes on pages 53 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ Z553Z= 1138 Z i sE 4R A MK IRER 2 EF &

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
MERERER

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

2011
—EB——F
Notes HK$'000
PsE FET
Cash flows from operating activities &% CREFKE
Cash generated from operations KEASIRE 26(a) 10,761
Hong Kong income tax paid BERBEBEH (15,067)
Overseas income tax paid BRHEINTIS R (15,182)
Net cash (used in)/generated from e (Fm),/
operating activities Fif5 IR & 558 (19,488)
Cash flows from investing activities BEEZH2HERE
Purchase of property, BEWE  BE&EE
plant and equipment (2,366)
Interest received BLUFE 4,798
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  MEMEREZ
plant and equipment FIE 26(b) =
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEEBE, (TR )RE F8E
investing activities 2,432
Cash flows from financing activities RETH2RERE
Proceeds from issuance of BIEEHBEERITERR
ordinary shares pursuant to FiS A
the Global Offering =
Proceeds from over-allotment of share RIE 2B EBEBR D
pursuant to the Global Offering FiS A 108,657
Payment of share issue expenses XA EITIRD RIS (3.812)
Increase in restricted cash PR HIEE 210 (13,171)
Net cash generated from financing A EHELIRS TR
activities 91,674
Net increase in cash and ReRELEEY2
cash equivalents EnFEE 74,618
Exchange gains on cash and ReRFESEFEEM
cash equivalents e 5 e 11,147
Cash and cash equivalents FHR e LIRS EEY
at beginning of the year 1,066,526
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRESRRESEEY
the year 21 1,152,291

2010
—E-TF
HK$'000
TET

140,236
(3,428)
(18,588)

118,220

(4,560)
928

233

(3,399)

748,800

(47,699)
(1,106)

699,995

814,816
9,330

242,380

1,066,526

The notes on pages 53 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ Z553Z= 1138 Z i = 4R A MK HRER 2 £ &

financial statements.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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GENERAL INFORMATION

PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company and together with its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
development and sale of point-of-sale (“POS") products and
provision of related services (collectively, the “POS terminal
solutions business”).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The Company was listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 20 December 2010. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

These financial statements are presented in thousands units
of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 15 March 2012.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(@ The following new standards and amendments to
standards are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2011, but do
not have a material impact on the Group.

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues
(Amendment)
HKFRS 1 Limited Exemption from
(Amendment) Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
(Amendment) Funding Requirement

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity

Instruments
Annual Third annual improvements
Improvements projects (2010) published
Project in May 2010

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New and amended standards have been issued,
but are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2011 and have not been
early adopted.

—  HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” addresses
the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued in November
2009 and October 2010. It replaces the parts
of HKAS 39 that relate to the classification and
measurement of financial instruments. HKFRS
9 requires financial assets to be classified into
two measurement categories: those measured
as at fair value and those measured at
amortised cost. The determination is made at
initial recognition. The classification depends
on the entity’s business model for managing
its financial instruments and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the instrument. For
financial liabilities, the standard retains most of
the HKAS 39 requirements. The main change
is that, in cases where the fair value option is
taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair
value change due to an entity’s own credit risk
is recorded in other comprehensive income
rather than the income statement, unless this
creates an accounting mismatch. The Group is
yet to assess HKFRS 9's full impact and intends
to adopt HKFRS 9 upon its effective date,
which is for the accounting period beginning
on or after 1 January 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
(continued)

(b)

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial
statements” builds on existing principles
by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity
should be included within the consolidated
financial statements of the parent company.
The standard provides additional guidance to
assist in the determination of control where
this is difficult to assess. The Group is yet to
assess HKFRS 10’s full impact and intends to
adopt HKFRS 10 no later than the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 12 “Disclosures of interests in other
entities” includes the disclosure requirements
for all forms of interests in other entities,
including joint arrangements, associates,
special purpose vehicles and other off balance
sheet vehicles. The Group is yet to assess
HKFRS 12’s full impact and intends to adopt
HKFRS 12 no later than the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
(continued)

(b)

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement” aims to
improve consistency and reduce complexity
by providing a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement
and disclosure requirements for use across
HKFRSs. The requirements do not extend
the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applied where
its use is already required or permitted by
other standards within HKFRSs. The group is
yet to assess IFRS/HKFRS 13’s full impact and
intends to adopt HKFRS 13 no later than the
accounting period beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

There are no other HKFRS or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that
would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group.

2.2 Consolidation and combination
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.
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PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation and combination (continued)
(@) Subsidiaries (continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combination. The consideration
transferred for acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
value of the assets transferred, equity instruments issued
and liabilities incurred by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between the group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2 FESHHE#BE®)

22 ZEREHHE)

(a)

MEAR(E)
AEERABEEHAERES
BHEARTE o WiE— RN EB
R EEAERA B TR
BE  PBITRATANRES
FAERENRFE - FIEEN
REBRIBERELFELNE
MEELRBENAFE - WER
RARAEELR i - £EBE
G P U BT BRI O B B VA BT
EENBBERIBRE  VIFNA
FERUB RN A FETE
HMER W ELE - REFRA
HE SRR R G R
TEERENLD - RERRKE
L0 ESCEIS 2y e ol

IR B Z R B AR E
NI - KA EEFBEERIRE
TR o

Wi AR 2 FER AR BRI
R FRUB B

RN ENER  RWEHTD
EIFEERE R EEE - AR
FB77 (B 2 AT s Y H HAEY
RN ERBIBASE RGP R R
BRIEEFEN A FETCER
& o AR EERERPTBAMNE
RREEFENATE  ZER
BEERAERABERDER

SEARBRARS - EHEER
SMEENRERIWE T AY
3 o BRIER HIRHRIRRRATE
ENEERRRME  TRIRER
BRI T LAESE - MBARINE
AERENATFER DRSS
VAR (R BLAS 62 [ FTER A 2 DR AR
F—He



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executive Directors that make strategic decisions.

24

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates or the currency in which funds
from financing activities are generated (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in HK$, which is the Company’s functional
currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end/period-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available for sale, are included in other
comprehensive income.
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2.4
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PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(iiiy all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are
taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESHBE#BE®

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 ¥ RERRZRE

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

FrBME - BB MR IR E SE R,
FrENMBEREAR - ELKABHE
Wi It 518 B B R (A RAST

= 118 B B B R R RGN E AT B
AREE - ANIERRABER] St &
o RENAT S ABERNEREE
HERSBELEE(WEMR) - ABH
e RREEREE 2 MBABAE
fRAMER ST o

WE - BELRENITEAERER
HEF T AFEHRND RERAERIH
BIE - FEsRAERmT

Buildings 5% — 10% BT 5% —10%

Leasehold improvements 20% or over lease HEMERE 20% IR EF
terms, whichever H(AE &
is shorter R%E)

Office furniture and equipment 18% — 25% WMAERER 18% — 25%

B
Plant and equipment 9% - 25% R K 55 9% - 25%
Motor vehicles 18% — 25% E 18% — 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

Leasehold land

Leasehold land is up-front payments to acquire long-term
interest in leasehold land, which are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights
to use the land from the date when the respective rights
were granted. Amortisation of leasehold land is calculated
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease and is
recognised in the consolidated income statement within
administrative expenses.

Impairment of investments in a subsidiary and
non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each balance sheet
date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary or associate in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwvill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
those that are not expected to be realised within the normal
operating cycle of the POS terminal solutions business. These
are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
include trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, restricted cash and cash at bank and on hand in
the consolidated balance sheet (Notes 2.12 and 2.13).

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.10 Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument'’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal
of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Impairment testing of trade and other receivables is described
in note 2.12.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11

2.12

2.13

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade, bills and other receivables including retention
money receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade, bills and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default or
delinquency in payments are considered indication that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of an allowance account,
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

Cash at bank and on hand

Cash at bank and on hand include cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three
months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and issue
of borrowings including fees and commissions paid to agents,
advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESHBE#BE®

2.18 Current and deferred income tax 218 EYRIELEMBH

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and
the Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision, where
appropriate, is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the Pension Scheme. The assets of the Pension
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administrated fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed to the Pension Scheme, except for
the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
in accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as an employee benefit expense when they
are due and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Pension obligations (continued)

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Group is
required to contribute an amount to certain retirement
benefit schemes based on approximately 7% to 20%
of the wages for the year/period of those employees in
the PRC. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of
those employees of the Group. Contributions to
these retirement benefits schemes are charged to the
consolidated income statement as incurred.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company'’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant
of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted, excluding the
impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).

e including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

e excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).
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2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(d) Share-based compensation (continued)
Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
the balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the
options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

2.23

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group's activities as described
below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the related
receivables, including retention money receivables, is
reasonably assured.

(b) Sales of service
Revenue from fixed-price contracts is generally
recognised in the period in which the services are
provided, using the straight-line basis over the terms of
contracts.

(c) Interestincome
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

Value added tax refund

Value added tax refund are recognised in other income in the
consolidated income statement when there is a reasonable
assurance that the refund will be received which generally
occurs upon the receipt of the approval of tax refund from
the local tax bureau.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

224

2.25

2.26

Government grants

Grants from the government for High and New Technology
Enterprise are recognised in “other income” in the
consolidated income statement at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all the attached conditions.

Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects (relating to the design and testing
of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible
assets when it is probable that the project will be a success
considering its commercial and technological feasibility,
and costs can be measured reliably. Other development
expenditures are expensed as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group'’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi ("RMB"), HK$, United
States dollar (“US$"”) and Euro (“EUR"). The majority
of assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB,
HK$ and US$, and there are no significant assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies. The Group
is subject to foreign exchange rate risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities which are denominated in a currency
other than HK$, RMB or US$, which are the functional
currencies of the major operating companies within the
Group. The Group currently does not hedge its foreign
currency exposure.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRREREs

3.1 BBEBEEE)
(@) SMERME(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The management considers the foreign exchange risk
with respect to US$ is not significant as HK$ is pegged
to US$ and transactions denominated in US$ are
mainly carried out by entities with the same functional
currency. The exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government. The Group
manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign currency rates.

For companies with HK$ as their functional currency

As at 31 December 2011, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ with all other variables
held constant, profit for the year and equity of the
Group would have been approximately HK$1,067,000
(2010: Nil) lower/higher, respectively, mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange difference on translation of
RMB denominated cash at bank and on hand and the
current account with related parties.

As at 31 December 2011, if EUR had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year and equity of
the Group would have been approximately HK$78,000
(2010: HK$51,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of EUR denominated cash at bank and on
hand.

For the company with RMB as its functional currency

As at 31 December 2011, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against RMB with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year and
equity of the Group would have been approximately
HK$1,428,000 (2010: HK$1,798,000) lower/higher,
respectively, mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of HK$ denominated cash at
bank and on hand and the current account with related
parties.

As at 31 December 2011, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against RMB with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year and equity of
the Group would have been approximately HK$46,000
(2010: HK$254,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of US$ denominated cash at bank and on
hand.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk
and commodity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
trade, bills and other receivables, restricted cash and
deposits with banks.

The carrying amounts of trade, bills and other
receivables, restricted cash and deposits with banks
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to financial assets.

To manage this risk, deposits of the Group are mainly
placed with state-owned financial institutions and
reputable banks. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to reputable and credit-
worthy customers with an appropriate financial
strength, credit history and an appropriate percentage
of down payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
regularly the authorisation of credit limits to individual
customers and recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales of
goods and services to the top five customers constituted
55.9% (2010: 61.2%) of the Group's revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2011. They accounted
for approximately 73.0% (2010: 80.9%) of the gross
trade receivable balances as at 31 December 2011.
Collections of outstanding receivable balances are
closely monitored on an ongoing basis to minimise such
credit risk.

Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group aims
to maintain sufficient cash at bank and on hand and
ensure the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of available financing, including short-term
bank borrowings. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group's finance department
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate
amount of cash at bank and on hand and flexibility in
funding through having available sources of financing.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over
and above the balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest bearing
bank deposits with appropriate maturities to manage
its overall liquidity position. As at 31 December
2011, the Group maintained cash at bank and on
hand of approximately HK$1,152,291,000 (2010:
HK$1,066,526,000), that are expected to be readily
available and sufficient to meet the cash outflows of its
financial liabilities, hence, management considers that
Group's exposure to liquidity risk is not significant.

The table below analyses the Group and the Company’s
non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
grouping based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying values as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

Group rEE

At 31 December 2011 R-E——F
+—-F=+—H

Trade payables JEFBRRR

Other payables and accruals

Total #aEt

At 31 December 2010 NZZE—ZF
+—-F=+—H

Trade payables FETBR X

Other payables and accruals

Total @t

HLA A R K B SRR

HLA A AR R K B SRR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

(e)

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Company YN

At 31 December 2011 R-_E——%F
+=—A=+—8

Other payables and accruals H e BR AR R FEETRRIR

Total #Et

At 31 December 2010 RZE—TF
+=—A=+—

Other payables and accruals H A ERTBR R

Total #Et

Interest rate risk

The income and operating cash flows of the Group and
the Company are both substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. Both the Group and
the Company has no significant interest-bearing assets,
except for deposits placed with banks.

As at 31 December 2011, if interest rates on all
interest-bearing bank and cash deposits had been 50
basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year and equity of the Group
would have been HK$5,587,000 (2010: HK$5,333,000)
higher/lower respectively, due to higher/lower interest
income earned on the deposits.

As at 31 December 2011, if interest rates on all
interest-bearing bank and cash deposits had been 50
basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year and equity of the Company
would have been HK$3,354,000 (the period from 15
February 2010 (date of incorporation) to 31 December
2010: HK$3,485,000) higher/lower respectively, due to
higher/lower interest income earned on the deposits.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

3.3

The Group regards its shareholders’ equity as capital. The
Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
equity. As at 31 December 2010 and 2011, the Group had
no borrowings, the gearing ratio is not applicable.

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities including cash at bank and on hand, restricted cash,
trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables,
trade payables, other payables and accruals approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that may
have a significant effect on the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period are discussed below.

(a)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such difference will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Income taxes and deferred taxation (continued)
Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Provision for inventories

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of inventories is
accordance with their net realisable value which is based
on the realisability of these inventories. Net realisable value
for inventories is determined by reference to management's
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing market
conditions, less applicable variable selling expenses. Based
on management’s best estimates, there is no material
impairment of inventories at 31 December 2011.

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. Provisions are applied to the receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of impairment
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the receivables
and provision for impaired receivables in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.
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5 REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
The Group is principally engaged in the sale of POS products
and provision of related services. Revenue and other income
recognised during the year were as follows:

Turnover = 3]

Sales of electronic payment products HEEFXNER
Sales of electronic payment services HEE TR
Other income Ht A

Interest income FLEMA

Value added tax refund (Note (i)) REILER (FHEEG)
Subsidy income LG ON

Others Hith

Note (i) The amount represents the Group’s entitlement to value added
tax refund in relation to sales of self-developed software products
in the PRC, which is non-taxable upon fulfilment of certain
custody and appropriation requirements.

WA REABA

AEE 2 W EHEPOSE fm MR HLAARE
R - NBEBFECHERHBAREMBI

AR

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—HILEE

2011
—g——f
HK$'000
Tz

1,089,431

13,749

1,103,180

6,317
31,283
1,207
2,905
41,712

1,144,892

BFREG)

2010
—E-TF
HK$'000
TET

709,350

14,260

723,610

928
25,039
392
1,031

27,390

751,000
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6

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order
to assess performance and allocate resource. Management has
determined the operating segments based on the internal reports
reviewed by the Executive Directors to make strategic decisions.
The Group is principally engaged in the POS terminal solutions
business, management considers that the Group operates in one
single business segment.

The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong, the PRC (China
excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) and the United States
of America (the “US"). Management assesses the performance of
the Group from a geographic perspective based on the location in
which revenues are generated.

Management assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measurement of segmental operating profit/(loss).

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and results during the year by
segment is as follows:

EREENAEEABREANERRL
DEER - EEERBEARITEEMERN
VAYE H SRS R TE 19 ) 2B 5 1 B E 3675 0
o NEBTE 2N EPOSKIREIRT R
X% ERERSAEEREE KN
B

AEEXERES  PE(TEETREE
B RFMkeE) REXBE(TXBDEE - &
BERIE ARREERANLE AR
SEHRR -

ERERERBATDRLL ST, (BE)
Mt EFHHEE D BIERE -

REBEFERREBRDRE DML LR
REGENOWWT

Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-E——E+-A=1+-HILEE

PRC,
other than
Hong Kong,
Macau and
Taiwan  Hong Kong US  Elimination Total
HE (RS -
RAR
ABERS) BB E3E] HEH wm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TEx TEx FEx TERT
Turnover from external customers  RENFEFNEERE 755,329 344,250 3,601 - 1,103,180
Inter-segment turnover NEREEE 249,644 3,839 - (253,483) =
Total turnover FEkE ) 1,004,973 348,089 3,601 (253,483) 1,103,180
Segmental earnings before PEBHEZH
interest expense, taxes, HE - mER
depreciation and amortisation BRI 2
("EBITDA") ([EBITDAY) 165,758 57,919 (14,095) 1,014 210,596
Depreciation e (2,564) (40) (523) = (3,127)
Amortisation g (6) - - - (6)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) L%,/ (&),
profit/(loss) before income tax BrET{STA
wfl/ (B8 163,188 57,879 (14,618) 1,014 207,463
Income tax expense s S (25,668)
Profit for the year ERa A 181,795
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Turnover from external customers
Inter-segment turnover

Total turnover

Segmental EBITDA
Depreciation
Amortisation

Segmental operating profit/(loss)/
profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

RENBRFPHERE
DRREER

H4BEBITDA

e

g

FRELERF/(BR),/
BRETERALEF/ (EB)

FISHiFY

R

PRC,

other than
Hong Kong,
Macau and
Taiwan
(A
R R
28RN
HK$'000
THx

566,340
86,219

652,559
149,640

(2,133)
()

147,502

6 oEERm®

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-T-ZTE+-A=1-HIL5E

Hong Kong

BB
HK$'000
TR

153,893
6,281

160,174

42,572
(35)

42,537

BERMMEERAT

us

xE
HK$'000
TAT

3,377

3,377

(16,248)
(440)

(16,688)

Elimination Total
HH FEEA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT

- 723,610

(92,500) -

(92,500) 723,610
(843) 175,121

- (2,608)
- ()

(843) 172,508
(27,085)

145,423

—T—55% 8
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2011

and

additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December

2011 are as follows:

Segment assets NEAE
Segment liabilities HEAE
Additions to non-current assets ERBEENTE

82 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

PRC,

other than
Hong Kong,
Macau and
Taiwan
FE(BE
R R
AERM})
HK$'000
TR

1,124,047

375,197

PRC,

other than
Hong Kong,
Macau and
Taiwan
hE(EE
RHR
=53
HK$'000
TET

2,302

2¥EER @)

RIEB——F+_A=+—HNHEEE
RBEUNREE-T——F+=-A=1+—

HILSFEFRBEEMREN D

As at 31 December 2011
R-E——%+-A=1+-H

Hong Kong

B
HK$'000
TET
873,729

29,276

us

XH
HK$000
TR

8,262

411

Year ended 31 December 2011

BE-2——SF+-A=t-RALHFE

Hong Kong

B
HK$'000
TER

62

us

%8
HK$'000
TER

Total

HK$'000
TR

2,006,038

404,884

Total

AE
HK$'000
TERT

2,366



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

6

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2010 and
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December
2010 are as follows:

oth

PRC,
er than

Hong Kong,
Macau and

Taiwan

PE(RE

BFMR

BIERN)

H

9

BAE 6

Segment assets i)

ez

Segment liabilities NEBE 1

K$'000
TR

42,201

87,201

PRC,

other than

Hong Kong,
Macau and

Taiwan

FEI(RE

A
R/

)
291)

HK$'000

Additions to non-current assets ERBEENRE

Segmental EBITDA represents segmental operating profit/
loss before finance costs, income tax expense, depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and amortisation of leasehold land.
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land, inventories, deposits and other receivables, trade
and bills receivables, restricted cash and cash at bank and on
hand. Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade payables, other
payables and accruals and taxation payable.

THT

3,228

DHEER @)
RoB-—TE+-A=+-AWHEEE
REBAREE-—E—BFE+-—A=+—
Bt FEERBEEOTEDT -

As at 31 December 2010
R-E-FF+-A=1—H

Hong Kong us Total
EE *E Fi
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TEx FET
856,614 6,545 1,505,360
30,440 608 218,249

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-T-TF+-A=1-HILEE

Hong Kong us Total
BB XH k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEx THEx FAx

9 1,236 4,560

7 JEAEBITDASE MBR BB KA ~ FTSHLH
X UE - BERREBREARBELH
BHEMOOBEEENBE D EEE
TBEEME BELERMEG HELHW -
FE - REREMEKSR - BEERRK
YRR - RGBS A RRITRF LR
- DPREBEIREBREEMNERER - HME
FTBRFR B AT FUIRIA R FESIAIIR -

BERMMEERAT —R——FFR
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6

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property,
plant and equipment.

Information provided to the Executive Directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group is mainly domiciled in Hong Kong, the PRC and the US.
The Group’s non-current assets and current assets by

geographical location, which is determined by the geographical
location in which the asset is located, is as follows:

2¥EER @)
ERPEERELITLUYE  BEREE
HIRE -

T8 ERE BT EREA KR
ERTTE— -
AEETBUES - PERER A -
REMBZEERERY FRBEERR
PEERMERIIINT -

As at 31 December

Non-current assets FEREBEE

PRC, other than Hong Kong, FE(ES B K
Macau and Taiwan BERIN

Hong Kong £

us X[

Current assets REEE

PRC, other than Hong Kong, FE(EE B R
Macau and Taiwan BIERRIN

Hong Kong S

us =35

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

W+=-—A=+—8H
2011 2010
—B——F —E—EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FAET
9,347 9,230
142 119
1,555 2,076
11,044 11,425
1,114,700 632,971
873,587 856,495
6,707 4,469
1,994,994 1,493,935
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses and
administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

Auditors’ remuneration — audit services
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 14)
Amortisation of leasehold land (Note 15)
Employee benefit expenses (including
Directors’ emoluments) (Note 9)
Costs of inventories sold (Note 18)
Operating lease rentals in
respect of buildings
Research and development costs
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Provision for impairment of
trade receivables (Note 19(c))
Donation

NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS

IZERAT BN — BAZ RS

M - BB RERETTE
(FFzE14)

E T #E (MFE15)

EEBEMAL(BRIEEEMHE)
(PfF5E9)

ELEFERAIE8)

EFMKLEHERs

B R A
HEWE - BEK
R EE
JE W AR FORE
(BFE19(c))

B

8

The net foreign exchange loss recognised in administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to

HK$4,726,000 (2010: HK$3,085,000).

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

Wages and salaries
Social security and pension costs

TERF®
HEREMRARSRA

RIEHEB DX
ATASHERA - $HEM X RITHRAXZ A
XA

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—-BLFE

2011 2010
—B——%F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
1,077 721
3,127 2,608

6 5

91,055 68,592
694,303 418,005
8,131 5,446
52,695 34,899

- 84

28 374

- 1,000

S FET I8
HE_Z——F+_-_A=1+—RHILtEE
RITERFASXREROINEFES &
4,726,000/ 70 (= Z—=Z4F : 3,085,000/8
JT) °

EERAAX(EREESHE)

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=1+—-HLEE

2011 2010

—g——%  —T-TF

HK$'000 HK$’000

FHT T

82,327 62,277

8,728 6,315

91,055 68,592
BERIBEARATR T —FFR
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9 EERIFX(BRESHE)

DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS) (continued) (%)

(a) Directors’ emoluments () ESM=
The Directors’ emoluments during 2010 and 2011 are both RZE—ZFRZZT——FEEMe
equivalent to key management compensation. HEREZEREMMHE -
The remuneration of each Director of the Company during RBEBFE  ARaSEFHM 0
the year are set out below: Ik

Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z-——S5+-A=t+-HLEE
Employer's
contribution
Discretionary  to pension

Fees Salary bonus scheme Total
BEN
Bk
ne 2 BB IEA HE 53 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of Directors EEng TET TER TET TET THET
Executive Directors HITES
Nie Guoming ZEB(AA 1,000 724 200 45 1,969
Jiang Hongchun BHE 900 706 200 6 1,812
Li Wenjin EXE 800 = 200 13 1,013
2,700 1,430 600 64 4,794
Independent Non-Executive BY##78%
Directors
Yip Wai Ming E(ZH 100 - - - 100
Wu Min R 100 = = = 100
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles EE 100 = = = 100
300 - - - 300
3,000 1,430 600 64 5,094
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Fees
e
HK$'000
Name of Directors BEMS FEr
Executive Directors HITEE

Nie Guoming =9 32
Jiang Hongchun BiLE 29
Li Wenjin FNE 26
87

Independent Non-Executive BY##78%

Directors

Yip Wai Ming e 3
Wu Min 28 3
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles EHE 3
9
96

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the following
Directors received emoluments from Hi Sun Technology
(China) Limited (“Hi Sun”) whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

i)

Li Wenijin received HK$2,342,000 from Hi Sun, part of
which was in respect of his services to the Group. No
apportionment has been made as the Directors consider
that it is impracticable to apportion these amounts
between his services to the Group and to Hi Sun.

Jiang Hongchun received HK$546,000 from Hi Sun
in relation to his capacity as director and employee of
certain subsidiaries of Hi Sun. He had resigned from
all such directorships and employment with these
companies on or before the listing of the Company on
20 December 2010.

9 EEEMNAX(EREEME)

(&)

() EE=M< @)

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE_ZT-ZF+_A=1—HItFE

Salary

e
HK$'000
THT

643
317

960

960

Employer's
contribution
Discretionary to pension
bonus scheme Total
EEH
BARE
WETEAL TR g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx FAET FAT
231 5 911
231 8 585
- - 26
462 13 1,522
- - 3
- - 3
- - 3
- - 9
462 13 1,531

WE-F-TE+-A=+—ALF
E - ATEFEBBRR(RE) AR
A (BB - BB RBRAER
T REB -

i)

ENE A =5 UEN2,342,000%8
T S R R AN ER A
fR7S - EBRA - ANEZSS
BERERAEEEFGRERN
B2 e D BRI AR 1T - A
I EAE S B RS ©

BHENAEERSEETHEBEA
RIESENEENF ) A REWE
546,000/870 * BT —FF
TZAZ+BARRQR LMk 2Rl
EBRAZERARNMBESRE
BB o

BERMMEERAT —R——FFR
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, no Directors of
the Group waived any emoluments and no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the Directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office (2010: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which the Directors agreed
to waive any emolument during 2010 and 2011.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 included
three Directors (2010: one). The emoluments payable to the
remaining two (2010: four) individuals during the year are as
follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits e R R
in kind BEWEF
Pension cost RIRE A

The emoluments fell within the following band:

Emolument band B <48 51

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7 —
2,000,000 7T
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T —
3,000,000 7T
PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2011

0787 — 1,000,000/ 7T

9

EERIAX(BRESHE)

(&)

(a)

(b)

EEME(E)

REEZZ—F+ZA=+—H1
FE - BEREEZE S NET N
& AEENTERTRNESINE
YEBRS| S IARE B REEM
AAREE R REE S BBHE(ZE
—TF | o

RETZ—ZFER-FT—F  fEE
ERBREEAMES R ZHE -

hEEEHAL
AEEBEE—T——Ft+ZA=1—
AIEFEREEamALBE=RE
F(ZE—ZF : —F) c NFEER
BITIZH(ZE—FF  OE)ATZ
&y T

2011 2010
=F——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
2,652 5,366

42 60

2,694 5,426

BT T HIAR R

Number of individuals

AR
2011 2010
—g——%  —2-TF
1 1
1 2
= 1
2 4
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current income tax BRERPRTS T
- PRC enterprise income tax — B EPTER
- Hong Kong profits tax —BHBFEH
Under provision in prior year BTFERETR
Income tax expense FrigBiF X

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5%
(2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

Pax Computer Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Pax Computer
Shenzhen”), a subsidiary of the Company, is located in the
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone. Pursuant to the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the PRC effective from 1 January 2008 (the “CIT
Law”), Pax Computer Shenzhen is subject to income tax at rates
gradually increase from 18% in 2008 to 25% in 2012 over a 5-year
transition period unless the preferential rate is applicable. Pax
Computer Shenzhen was qualified as a High and New Technology
Enterprise in 2009 under the CIT Law and is eligible to enjoy a
preferential tax rate of 15% for 3 years from 2009. As such, the
applicable enterprise income tax rate of Pax Computer Shenzhen
was 15% for the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2011.

10 FREHRX

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

2011 2010
—g——% —m—mg
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRT T
15,241 18,174
10,425 8,050

2 861

25,668 27,085

BE-_Z—®+-_A=+—RHIEE -
BEMESHIBBGEETERD R FIRH X
16.5%(=F—FF : 16.5% ) EH B -

YNGR N E B SRR G A 4 5HERTUR T
BASBEZEMERRKIRITHEGE -

AARMBAR BB ERBEIT ORI A
FRABI([ B BT E#RY )R RIRINEE
FEeBRER-_ZTZN\F—A—B4E8Z
FRMEMSEE(IREMSHED B
B BRI BRMATERAMER T
NER18% AR FBEHZHEMNE_T
—ZFH25%  EEHRBEAERIN - 1B
BEEMSHE  BETE#RINN-Z
STHEBRSFEMEE B -TTAF
HB-FHMEAERZERIS%NERE -
Hit  #E2EZF—TFRZF—F+=
A=Z+—HLFE  BEE8%xI0E
AEMSHEA15% -

BERMMEERAT —R——FFR

89



90

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Pax Technology, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company in the US, was
operating at a net loss position and did not have any assessable
profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities
in the respective jurisdictions as follows:

Profit before income tax R PSR A A

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
applicable to profits in the
respective countries

Income not subject to taxation

Tax incentives for research and development
expenses available for a subsidiary
incorporated in the PRC (note)

Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes

Unrecognised tax losses

Under provision in prior year

BARB A

REERHBIAE A
E—FERETR

Note: The Group obtained a incentive from the PRC tax authority relating
to the research and development expenses of its subsidiary in
the PRC. Under such tax incentive rule, the Group may claim an
additional tax deduction up to 50% of the relevant research and
development expenses incurred in a year subject to the endorsement
from the PRC tax authority.

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15.4% (2010:
15.7%) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

10 FRERR (@)
Pax Technology, Inc. (748 2 Rz 7 35 B &9
—BHBARREBE_T—F+=A
=+—RILFESSBERE - WEEM
ERTEM(ZT—TF : &) o

7R 5= B BR PS5 A M B0 B0 TR B3R RS
ME[ERDERE R A O B 585 T 9 hi#E T
BREHENIERS R ERRNT

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

BN EEERELEN 2 EH
BB R E TR

AR BIRE M AR SZ 2 FT A R
MATEE R A E R ()

AR = T A HUR AV RS2

2011 2010
—g—-5  -z-T%
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
207,463 172,508
32,003 26,501
(6,220) (4,727)
(4,146) -
1,836 1,947
2,193 2,503

2 861
25,668 27,085

BieE : ARG E — RALRA R B RO BB A Bl Rt AL A 3
ERESTENBHERMN —RHEE
B RIBEBERBESRA - AEEA A
HRINEER RS TEFNAEMEER
#150% - HEZERr R BB HEIRERR

HE-—ZET—F+-_A=+—HLEE"
DR EBHR R B15.4% ( — T —ZT4F ¢
15.7%) °
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11 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$5,203,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011 (the period
from 15 February 2010 (date of incorporation) to 31 December
2010: HK$8,397,000).

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2010 used in the
basic earnings per share calculation is determined on the
assumption that an aggregate 740,000,000 shares with
par value of HK$0.1 each issued upon the reorganisation
(the "Reorganisation”) and the capitalisation issue (see note
22(b)) had been in issue prior to the incorporation of the
Company.

11 RRFEREE ARLGEE

BE-_T——F+-A=+—HIL=EE "
R ARERFFB AE(GEES,203,0008 7T
(ZZE—ZEE-A+HB (MK BE)
BE_T—TF+_RA=+—HI-8H:
8,397,00078 7T ) T A AN A B ) B 755 s 7= R
HIER -

12 BREF

(a) EX
FRERBF VRN R EEFEA A
FEEARFERARFADETE AR
IETEHEEE -

AESRERRANMAEANEE
T—THFEF+_A=FT—HILFER
BT EROMNEFLHHEE HRRK
SATEMR]) REREBET(RMGE
22(b)) R B ITR IR EE B LA H
740,000,000 % B& 17 B 7 A A A] 5
P27 ATEETT o

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—HILEE

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company (HK$'000)
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (thousand shares)

Basic earnings per share
(HK$ per share)

2011 2010
—E——f —E-THF
AR A AR R T
(F%&1) 181,795 145,423
BEITE R INETIIE
(F5) 1,036,488 748,548
BRELEF
(B TT) 0.175 0.194
BERRREARAR T —FER
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(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
share, the over-allotment option (“Over-allotment Option”)
(Note 22 (c)). For the Over-allotment Option, a calculation
is done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
market share price of the Company’s shares for the period
from 1 January 2011 to the date exercised Over-allotment
Option) based on the monetary value of the subscription
right attached to outstanding Over-allotment Option. The
number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming the

exercise of the Over-allotment Option.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2011 is the same (2010: same) as the basic earnings per
share as the conversion of potential ordinary shares in
relation to the outstanding Over-allotment Option would

have anti-dilutive effect to the basic earnings per share.

13 DIVIDENDS
No dividends had been paid or declared by the Company during

the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

12 BRERN (@)

(b)

g

FREEANNFTET A SRERER
Fr 78 B8 75 58 RUE ) BB AUA
BOBTEERNMNETFEE - AR
RIET - HBABEEENENE R
B - EBRERCAR#E ([ B RRAC AR #E 1) (B
E22() - MBREKRENS @ RE
EARAFEERARRAROR -F
——F A RAETEBERRER
HIM e M EREE) B AN B
B SR ARTT B AR
MwmnREEEREEFELFTE M
STEMGRNHAE e B1RRATER
R REMETHRMEBBFELLL
& o

BE_2——F+-_A=+—HIHF
2 GRESE RN EGRERZTE
R(ZZ—ZF : HRA) - EHEBR
AR RITE B IR R BT
AR EETRERATEESRES
a7 N

13 RE

B=E

—E——fF4+ A=+ —RAILEE

ARRYEENAEREARE(ZF—F
FE) e
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 14 ¥%¥ - BMERRZE —FKE

Leasehold Office
improve-  furniture and Plant and Motor
Buildings ments  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
g BOE HE
EF NEEE GERERE FE ] RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAn Tén Tén Tén Tén Tén
At 31 December 2009 WZEENET-A=1-H
Cost kA 6,819 943 6,116 1,394 2,699 1797
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (2,608) (642) (3,467) (1,161) (925) (8,803)
Net book amount FETE 4211 301 2,649 233 1,774 9,168
Year ended 31 December 2010 HE-Z-ZF
TZA=T-HILFE
Opening net hook amount BREEE 4,211 301 2,649 233 1,774 9,168
Additions NE - - 2,142 342 1,476 4,560
Depreciation (Note 7) FE(WT) (620) (192) (1,085) (108) (603) (2,608)
Disposals HeE - - 33 - (284) (317)
Exchange differences EAZEE 153 40 88 18 92 391
Closing net book amount HRERTFE 3,744 149 4361 485 2,455 11,194
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF+-A=1-H
Cost A 7143 988 8,905 1812 3,704 22,552
Accumulated depreciation ZHITE (3,399) (839) (4,544) (1,327) (1,249) (11,358)
Net book amount FEFE 3,744 149 4,361 485 2,455 11,194
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE-Z——F
TZA=t-HILFE
Opening net book amount HUBERE 3,744 149 4,361 485 2,455 11,194
Additions RE - - 984 759 623 2,366
Depreciation (Note 7) REWR) (698) (152) (1,366) (220) (691) (3,127
Disposals it - - - - - -
Exchange differences EREE 144 3 105 EY) 92 376
Closing net book amount HAREFE 3,190 - 4,084 1,056 2479 10,809
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%+-A=1-H
Cost A 7,446 1,030 9,986 2,665 4,484 25,611
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (4,256) (1,030) (5,902) (1,609) (2,005) (14,802)
Net book amount FEFE 3,190 - 4,084 1,056 2479 10,809

All depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment has
been charged to administrative expenses.

AEENE - BERRBOR AR EDH

ANITHRX »
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15 LEASEHOLD LAND - GROUP 15 HE T —AKEE
The Group's interests in leasehold land represent upfront REERHEE AR T — RN
payments for land and their net carrying values are analysed as ;o BEERERESTOT
follows:

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

2011 2010

—E——fF —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Opening net carrying value HRYIRREFE 231 225
Amortisation (Note 7) B (FsE7) (6) (5)
Exchange difference P& =%E 10 11
Closing net carrying value HIRAREF{E 235 231
The Group'’s leasehold land is located in the PRC and is held on AREEMNHETWARTE - HER10E
leases of between 10 to 50 years. Amortisation of the Group’s 506 - REEMEE T HMABEEDTA

leasehold land has been charged to the administrative expenses. THFX o
16 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY 16 RMB AT ZIRE —AQF

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
2011 2010
—EB——F —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#xT FHIT
Investment, at cost: WE - RKARE -
Unlisted shares JEETRRD 528,103 528,103
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16 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY - COMPANY 16 AMBARIZRE - R DT (@)

(continued)
The following is a list of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011:

Place of incorporation Principal activities and
and type of legal entity place of operation
Name AL 2 TEERR
A% REEERER EEBY
Grand Global International British Virgin Islands, limited ~ Investment holding in
Limited liability company Hong Kong

RERLEE  ARAF EBEENBRAER

Pax Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Sales of POS products
BEMEERAF company and provision of related
&% BRAR services in Hong Kong
ERBHEPOSER JIRMH
iElapiias
BEEREMmOFIN) PRC, limited liability company ~ Development and sales
AR HE - BRATF of POS products and
(Pax Computer Technology provision of related
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.) ® services in the PRC
EAR B E RAFEPOSE M
L EREARERS
Pax Technology, Inc. US, limited liability company ~ Sales of POS products in
X8 BRAT the US
EXRBHEPOSER RIRMH
iElapiias

# Interest held directly by the Company.

*  The English name of Pax Computer Shenzhen represents the best
effort by the management of the Group in translating its Chinese
name as it does not have an official English name.

A During the year, the paid-up capital of Pax Computer Shenzhen
increased from HK$50,000,000 to HK$200,000,000 as a result
of capital injection from its immediate holding company, Pax
Technology Limited of HK$110,000,000 and by capitalisation of
retained earnings of HK$40,000,000.

RZB——F+ZA=+—8  KHEBAA

ZHRBEHOT
Particulars of issued and
paid up/registered capital
BRITRE Interest held
FMERHE FriEs
2 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100%(#)

UREREEIET BBk

26,250,000 ordinary shares 100%
of HK$1 each, 8,750,000
series A preference shares of
HK$1 each; 8,750,000 series B
preference shares of HK$1 each

26,250,000f GREE AT
LAk - 8,750,0008%
SREB1ETZRIAMELR
8,750,000 B EE 1B T2 &

SIIBESLA
HK$200,000,0001) 100%
200,000,000/ &
US$1,000 100%
1,000% 7T

RAREERSH 2 s -

HAREEERRYIEmIEXM R XA
M MERNERRARAEHERERH
EP AR HNRARE N -

FA - ARBESHERRYNEEERA
A B B RHE AR A R)E#E 110,000,000
TL AR B & F)40,000,000087C © B
BEFE ORI 8 R A% AN 150,000,000
JCHEANZ200,000,00078 7T ©
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17

18

19

AMOUNT DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY -
COMPANY

The amount due from Pax Technology Limited, one of the indirect
owned subsidiary of the Company is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

INVENTORIES - GROUP

Raw materials BEAE
Work in progress TR
Finished goods Ik o

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the
year amounted to approximately HK$694,303,000 (2010:
HK$418,005,000).

No provision for obsolete inventories was made during the year
(2010: Nil).

17

18

FEW KB A B RIE — AR F

fEY AN R E P — R EE N E AR
BEMRARARFEAEER 281
AEZNER -

S 1
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H

2011 2010
—=E——fF —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
73,815 51,519
31,578 22,904
200,273 74,097
305,666 148,520

RAFE  HERATBEHEERA
4 /694,303,000 T (=T —F F :
418,005,000/ 7T) °

RAEE  BEAREFEHRRE(CS
—ZF E)

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 BEWERAREREE - ZER
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Hu W FRIE
Group Company
EH b NN
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=A=+—-H W+=—A=+—H
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——-fF —T-FF —E——fF T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT FERx FEIL
Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEURBE 2R (FiEE(a)) 430,313 215,535 - -
Less: provision for impairment A ERCERRORERE
of receivables (Note (c)) (FfF3E() (1,953) (1,846) - -
Trade receivables, net FEU R FUF AR 428,360 213,689 = -
Bills receivables (Note (b)) FEUZEE (B £ (b)) 75,355 55,353 - -
Trade and bills receivables YRR R EKEE 503,715 269,042 - -
Deposits and other receivables B REMEKIE 17,305 7,001 2,016 -
Trade and bills receivables, BRI R -
deposits and other receivables e REAMERRIE 521,020 276,043 2,016 -
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19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 BREERKRERERE - B#ER

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group and the Company’s trade and
bills receivables, deposits and other receivables are denominated
in the following currencies:

H i EUWRRIE ()

7 52 B J AN 20 ) B B 0 T L 4
124 T 3R 0 B T T A T
HEHE -

Group Company
rEE NS
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H W+=A=+—H
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF —E2——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT THEx FHT
HK$ BT 7,645 2,858 2,016 -
RMB AR 480,871 249,884 - -
us$ ES 32,504 23,301 - -
521,020 276,043 2,016 -

The fair values of trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables approximated their carrying values as at 31 December
2010 and 2011.

(a) Trade receivables
The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range generally
from 0 to 180 days. However, credit terms of more than 180
days may be granted to customers on a case-by-case basis
upon negotiation. As at 31 December 2010 and 2011, the
ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as follows:

Up to 90 days 90H AR
91 to 180 days 91E180H
181 to 365 days 181%£365H
Over 365 days 365H A

RoE—PER-F——E+-A=t—
B - RS E RS - R RAME
IR AT R A REEAE -

(a) FEUERFX
AEBGTESEBANEEHHO
Z180H 15 - A » KLHEMB IR
BRIERAE L EA180HME
Ef RZZE—ZEFR-_ZT——F
TZA=1+—8  BUEEFNRED
i (N

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-AH
2011 2010
—F——F ——
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz THET
290,318 119,898
84,058 44,268
21,593 31,362
34,344 20,007
430,313 215,535

BERMMEERAT —R——FFR

97



98

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (

(a) Trade receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables included
retention money receivables of HK$46,726,000 (2010:
HK$39,480,000). The retention money represents
approximately 2% to 5% (2010: approximately 2% to 5%)
of the relevant contract sum granted to certain number of
the customers in the PRC that has a retention period of three
to five years. As at 31 December 2011, retention money
receivables aged over 365 days amounted to HK$31,789,000

(2010: HK$15,604,000).

The Group's sales are made to several major customers and
there is concentration of credit risks. Sales of goods and
services to the top five customers constituted approximately
55.9% (2010: 61.2%) of the Group’s turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2011. They accounted for approximately
73.0% (2010: 80.9%) of the gross trade receivable balances

as at 31 December 2011.

Receivables were neither past due nor impaired amounted to
approximately HK$428,360,000 (2010: HK$213,689,000) as

at 31 December 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, no trade receivables were past due

but not impaired (2010: Nil).

(b) Bills receivables

The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity

periods of within six months.

The maturity profile of the bills receivables of the Group is as

follows:

Up to 90 days
91 days to 180 days

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

continued)

90H AW
91HZE180H
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19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

19 EWRANREREE - #EKk
H it FE U FRIE ()

(a)

(b)

FEWERR (&)
RZZE—F+=ZA=+—8 ' EK
3R 5% B 45 JE W 7B 0 & $8 46,726,000
B (ZF—FF : 39,480,000 %8
L) e EHSBERTREETER
HAMERBELN2%ES%(ZF
—ZE K% ES%) - MIEERE
B—ERAF RZE—F+=A
=+—H  ENFREKREIBE365E 8
4856 /531,789,0008 70 (T —F4F -
15,604,000/ 7 ) o

REEMHENRAREEEETSES
BEEEETRR #E-ZT——F
+ZA=+—RALFE  HAARF
HEMEMREHEMNRBERMEE
BAAI55.9% (—F—FF : 61.2%) -
MhR—FT——F+=/=+—HH
FEUBR FAERBH)73.0% ( —E—T4F ¢
80.9%) °

W_ZE——F+-_A=+—8"
BE 4 380 HA O A OB (B A B ISR TR 4D
428,360,000 B 7L (= & — T £F -
213,689,000/ 7T ) ©

R_ZT——F+_A=+—8  IE
BEBERBENERZE(ZE—
TE | o

EWEE

A SRR HA AR B8 A AR AR
TR EE -

AEBERKRSENDIHBERET

As at 31 December

W+=-RA=+—8H

2011 2010
—B——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

21,937 24,443

53,418 30,910

75,355 55,353
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19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(c) Provision for impairment of trade receivables
The movement on the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

At beginning of the year

Provision recognised in the
consolidated income statement
(Note 7)

Receivables written off during
the year as uncollectible

Exchange differences

At end of the year

REH
Rz WS R ER O BHE
(BIaE7)

F AR AN AT = A Y
FEUH IR
PS5

RER

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying values of each class of receivables mentioned
above. The Group did not hold any collateral as security for
these receivables as at 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

The other classes within trade and bills receivables, deposits
and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

EWERARERERE - #Ek
H i EUWRRIE ()

(o) FEWRRFRERE
ENERFORERFHEESIMT

As at 31 December

W+=-—A=+—H
2011 2010
—B——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
1,846 2,608
28 374
= (1,229)
79 93
1,953 1,846

RikE B HmENRAEERR R L
MEBEYFKENEREE R_F
——F+ZA=t—B AEELE
IR FRKFCAER B EMERR (=
T—TFH) o

EMEER R EINRE - e REME

WHRIEREMER AL EEREER
= o

BERMMEERAT —R——FFR
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20 RESTRICTED CASH - GROUP

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

Restricted bank deposits SERHIERITIE R

Restricted cash represented bank deposits of the Group which
were placed as guarantee deposits for tenders and as securities for
sales of goods to customers and were denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2011, the effective interest rate on restricted
bank deposits were 0.5% (2010: 0.36%) per annum. All restricted
cash were kept in the bank accounts opened with banks in the
PRC as at 31 December 2010 and 2011, where the remittance of
funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

20

SR4HES - AEH

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8

2011 2010
—E——fF ZE-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FAT

16,017 2,846

XRARVEBEAREESRENEREZS
UREETEFPMERMFRORITE
o TIAANRKERHE

RZZE——F+_A=+—8 " ZRFIE
THEZANEBRMNEAEEBF0S%(ZE—F
F:036%) RZE—ZTFR_FT——F
+ZRA=+—H " FBEXRFIRSFRE
FRERNRITHALORITERS  MARE
SR EZBINEEH -

21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND 21 |RITRFLEAS
Group Company
rEE N
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H W+=—A=+—H
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF —B2——fF —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FAET TEx FHT
Cash at bank and on hand RARFLRS 560,611 843,149 150,430 547,082
Short-term bank deposits RERITER 591,680 223,377 552,073 150,000
1,152,291 1,066,526 702,503 697,082
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21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued) 21 RITRFLBEE @)
As at 31 December 2011, funds of the Group amounting to R_ZE——F+_A=+—H " £5H
HK$316,016,000 (2010: HK$233,899,000) were deposited A #0316,016,0008 T (=& — & F :
in bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the 233,899,000/ 7T ) 17 B AL 1 B35 R 3R 1T 7
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control. SUHRITERP - MARESRNES DI
FEEH -

The effective interest rate per annum on short-term bank deposits REBEHETHERANERFNXR
of the Group was 0.49% (2010: 0.53%) per annum. These 049% (ZZE—FF : 053%) - 25+
deposits have an average maturity of 82 days (2010: 55 days). The R FHRHE AR2B(ZE—ZF 1 55
carrying amounts of cash at bank and on hand were denominated H) - RITEF LRENEMETIDHAT

in the following currencies: FIEHEEHE

Group Company
b | b NS
As at 31 December As at 31 December
W+=A=+—-H W+=A=+—-H

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF —2——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET TET FHAT
HK$ BT 709,468 746,713 702,295 697,082
RMB AR 315,342 229,022 - -
us$ e 125,915 89,751 208 -
EUR BT 1,566 1,040 - -
1,152,291 1,066,526 702,503 697,082
The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group and the RZE——F+_A=+—HB AEEK
Company as at 31 December 2011 were HK$1,152,065,000 KRB HZAEERBRD BIA1T,152,065,000
(2010: HK$1,066,291,000) and HK$702,503,000 (2010: BL(ZZE —ZFF ¢ 1,066,291,000 %
HK$697,082,000) respectively. JC) % 702,503,0008 L ( =T — T4 :

697,082,000 7T,) ©
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22 SHARE CAPITAL

22 BRA&

(a) Authorised share capital of the Company

(a) FDFHVEERE

Number of Ordinary
ordinary shares of
shares HK$0.1 each
SRmEE.1
ZEREE BLTZEBER
(Thousand
shares) HK$'000
(FAR) FET
Authorised SERE
On 15 February 2010, RZZT—ZEF_A+HhHH
date of incorporation (FEA S B E) - -
Initial authorised share capital AR IE A 1,000 100
Increase in authorised share capital SR AR AIE N 1,999,000 199,900
At 31 December 2010 R-TE—T4F
+—-A=+—H 2,000,000 200,000
At 1 January 2011 and A Y = P3
31 December 2011 —ZT——F+=-A=+—H 2,000,000 200,000

As of the date of incorporation, the initial authorised share
capital of the Company was HK$100,000 divided into
1,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each.

On 4 November 2010, the authorised share capital was
increased from HK$100,000 to HK$80,000,000 divided into
800,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in preparation
for the Reorganisation.

On 1 December 2010, the authorised share capital was
increased from HK$80,000,000 to HK$200,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in
preparation for the global offering (“Global Offering”).

102 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

REEMASI BES - RA R EE
% A5 100,000 7T + % 41,000,000
% SRR E(E0. 178 ToHY & Ak -

RZF—FF+—AMNA - REHE
B+ JETEBAHE100,00058 T INE
80,000,000 JT * % 4800,000,000
B E 0. 178 TRy EiRAR -

RZZFE—ZF+=-_A—H  A%E
EHBE([2KBE]) wﬁmﬁxmm
80,000,000 % 7T & /i = 200,000,000
P IT 9 A2,000,000,0000% &AL E
0.1 BRI ERAR ©



(b) Issued share capital of the Company

Issued and fully paid
On 15 February 2010,

date of incorporation
Allotment of shares pursuant

to the Reorganisation (note (i)
Shares issued under

the capitalisation issue (note (ii))
Shares issued pursuant to

the Global Offering (note (iii))

At 31 December 2010

At 1 January 2011

Shares issued for Over-allotment
Option in connection with
the Global Offering (note (c))

At 31 December 2011

22 AR @)

ERTRAR

R-ZZE—ZTF_-_A+HH
(FEfARSZ B H)

R & S AR AR (BT FEG)

RIBERNEHEITZ
BT (BREG)
RIBEREE
TR (BT REGin)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

22 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b) ARBMEBITRAE

R=B-BFt-A=T—H

RZZE—F—H—H
AR E BRI E
BT (H7E)

R-_F——F+-—A=+—H

(i) In preparation for the listing of the Company in 2010,
Hi Sun underwent a group reorganisation, pursuant
to which the companies engaged in the POS terminal
solutions business were transferred to the Company
and then the Company became the holding company
of the consolidated entities. The Reorganisation mainly

involved the following:

i) On 4 November 2010, the Company entered into
an agreement with Hi Sun to acquire 100% equity
interest in Grand Global International Limited
("Grand Global”). Grand Global held 60% equity
interest in Pax Technology Limited, which in
turn held 100% equity interest in Pax Computer
Shenzhen and Pax Technology, Inc. The Company
credited as fully paid the one nil paid shares held
by Hi Sun and allotted 149,999,999 shares as fully
paid to Hi Sun in exchange for the equity interests

in Grand Global;

BERMMEERAT

@)

Number of Ordinary
ordinary shares of
shares HK$0.1 each
EREE0.1
ZERYE BTZEBR
(Thousand
shares) HK$'000
(TR) THET
250,000 25,000
490,000 49,000
260,000 26,000
1,000,000 100,000
1,000,000 100,000
37,728 3,773
1,037,728 103,773

REBEARIANR_Z-—ZF L
M REETREEAE BRIt
HEFEPOSH M AR TT TRETFH
BRBEFETARA  ARAR
EHBRKRAHERBNERRA
Al EHETESRATIME :

N RZE—ZEF+—AM@
A AAR#EEKBE T
%% - Y B# Grand Global
International Limited
([ Grand Global])#)100%
A% 4 - Grand Global # &
BEREBRAQFAG0%
et - mMa=EREERA
AR A B BT E R
X Pax Technology, Inc. ]
100% k1 - R AFHE
I5 5758 1 — BRR SR SRR
BARINABHRI=5
Fit 8% 149,999,999 % f& 17 1F
RBERREARD - AIRE
Grand GlobalHJ&#E

—T—%%% 103
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22 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b) Issued share capital of the Company (continued)

(c)

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

i) On 5 November 2010, the Company entered into
a share swap agreement (the “Share Swap"”) with
Digital Investment Limited (“Digital Investment”)
and Dream River Limited (“Dream River”) (the
“Selling Shareholders”) for the acquisition of their
entire shareholding in Pax Technology, one of
the subsidiaries of the Group, in consideration of
allotting credited as fully paid 50,000,000 ordinary
shares to each of Digital Investment and Dream
River. The Share Swap was completed on 14
December 2010.

Pursuant to the written resolution of the sole
shareholder passed on 1 December 2010, the Directors
were authorised to capitalise HK$49,000,000 standing
to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company by applying such sum in paying up in full at
par 490,000,000 shares of the Company for allotment
and issue to holders of shares of the Company on 1
December 2010 to their respective shareholdings in the
Company. The shares to be allotted and issued shall
rank pari passu with all shares in issue.

(ii)

(i) On 20 December 2010, the Company issued
260,000,000 ordinary shares at HK$2.88 each pursuant
to the Global Offering. The excess of issue price over
the par value of the ordinary shares were credited to
share premium, after deducted the share issuance cost

of HK$47,699,000.

Over-allotment Option

In connection with the Global Offering completed on 8
December 2010, the Company granted the Over-allotment
Option to the international underwriters of the Global
Offering (“International Underwriters”), exercisable by the
global coordinator of the Global Offering or their agent
on behalf of the International Underwriters at any time
from the listing date of the Company up to (and including)
the date which is the 30th day after the last date for the
lodging of application forms under the public offer and
preferential offer. Pursuant to the Over-allotment Option,
the global coordinator or their agent had the right to
require the Company to allot and issue up to an aggregate
of 47,880,000 additional new shares of the Company,
representing in aggregate 15% of the offer shares initially
available under the Global Offering and that these shares
were issued at the offer price.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

22 BA&R g
(b) AATIMCRITHRA(E)

(0

i RZZE—ZFF+— 8
B - &R A M Digital
Investment Limited ([ Digital
Investment ) &z Dream River
Limited ( [ Dream River | )
(T ERRER )R] LRk
(MR Nk ERE
RAEEEF—FHREAR
BECEE I
R (B AM\IDigital Investment
% Dream River & B F¢ 2
50,000,000 A% A BR 1| 4 £
ERERBRERD - BEER
RERZZT—FF+=A
+POH =R °

(iy REE—RERA-_Z—ZF+—
A—RARBHEMRZER M=
T-TF+ A HRBEEES
ANE IR R EER N ERR A
49,000,000/ &AL - F{ER
TH & 4 /2 490,000,000 % [A] 24X 22
ABRMEFHEARRESERAR
AR R AE L DI BC B I 2R 1T AR D ©
15T RE REITRRGEMEE
BOIRNEARSER

RZZE—ZF+-_A=+H K
RNAEIREZIREE NZAR2.88
JT3£17260,000,000 A% & 3@ A% °
R IOBR AR 19 31T 247,699,000
BITiE - BITERB T EREE
2 ED TR AR EE o

BEE A AR R

REBE(ENR_E—ZFE+-A
NEZR)ME » ARFRERBE
RIBRES B 57 ([ ERR e il ) IR
B - AR REEN2RRA
ABEREA(REBEESHE) LA
AR FTMBHRRERET A AAEEME
EBREHFRBEILABHETE0
H(B8#EZ B ) ILHRETE - RiEBE
FopSHE - 2ERIBFAAREARIE A G
BRAN RN N B TRZ AR
47,880,000A% &R RA B ALY - & 48
EREHBEFE TV AERERE
BN HI15% » W EBERITHER

,T/'\ °

(iii)
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22 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(c)

(d)

Over-allotment Option (continued)

On 12 January 2011, the Over-allotment Option was
partially exercised and the Company issued an aggregate of
37,728,000 additional shares at the offer price of HK$2.88
per share. Gross proceeds in relation to the over-allotment
amounted to HK$108,657,000 was received by the Company
on 17 January 2011. The excess of issue price over the par
value of the ordinary shares of HK$101,072,000 were credit
to share premium, after deducted the share issuance cost of
HK$3,812,000. The remaining Over-allotment Option not
exercised was expired on 13 January 2011.

Share option scheme

Pax share option scheme

On 1 December 2010, the board of Directors of the Company
approved a share option scheme (the “PAX Scheme”) for
the issuance of in aggregate no more than 10% in nominal
amount of the aggregate of shares in issue on the listing date
of the Company, representing 100,000,000 shares (subject
to the terms of the scheme and the relevant provisions under
the Listing Rules).

The PAX Scheme was effective from 1 December 2010 for
10 years and unless otherwise cancelled or amended. Upon
to the date of the approval of these consolidated financial
statements, no share option was granted under the PAX
Scheme.

22 AR @)

(9]

(d)

BERMMEERAT

R (E)
RZF——F—F+=H - HEL
BRI DITEE - MARAIAEE
BEE%2.88 LB 114 $£37,728,000
BREEINER D c ARBIRZTE——F
—ATtHRKIEBBEELERE S
FiT 1S 3} 18 42 %8 5 108,657,000 7T ©
BUERYARAMEZZEAH
101,072,000/ 7T ( £ F0B% AR 1 31T AK
783,812,000/ 7Ti8 ) 5t AR5 E o
BTARITEZ BRERREN T ——
F—H+=HEIH-

BRI

BEBRESTS
MN-ZB—ZTE+-A—H AQBE
FeE—BERERESI(EESER
RS VAEITE X T BBARR L
THEEEETIRDAEEN10% (B
100,000,0000% f% 7 ) (18 78 1% BB 5% 5t
B2 ERRET EMRANZEER
TE) °

AEBRETEER T —TF+
A—BAER - BRIFERTTHIHKIER
BRIZE 8 B £ E B+ F 4
—HAEN -  BEREHRAVBHRERE
HEER  UERED=ERAETE
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23 RESERVES 23 f#%

(a) The Group (@) x&£@E
Share  Capital reserve Exchange Retained
premium (note (i) reserve earnings Total
ERGE
REE (i&EG) HERE REEA @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FiEn TiEn TiEn T TiEn
For the year ended Bz-2--f
31 December 2011 tZB=t-RLEE
B iy 201 ROBEAEZER LD WMIE e 49 g
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year FRgy - - - 1817% 181,795
Other comprehensive income HEfh Ak
Exchange differences arising on BEBINHBAR
translation of the financial statements ~ BiB#REL 2
of foreign subsidiaries BHER - - 27,403 - 27,403
Total comprehensive income PEMEEE 0 - - nas B7% 209,198
Transaction with owners REEAZRS
Over-allotment of shares pursuantto B2 RBERERE
the Global Offering (Note 22(c)) Ra(Hsg20) ooz - - - 101,072
Balance at RZB——E
31 December 2011 TZA=+-R268 1,230,276 (414.978) 64,257 617,826 1,497,381
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23 RESERVES (continued)

(a) The Group (continued)

For the year ended
31 December 2010
Balance at 1 January 2010

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences arising on

translation of the financial statements

of foreign subsidiaries
Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners

Allotment of shares pursuant to the
Reorganisation

Shares issued under the
capitalisation issue

Shares issued pursuant to the
Global Offering

Total transactions with owners

Balance at
31 December 2010

Note:

(i) Capital reserve

Rt 2ERE

BEBIMHELR
ABRREL
EXZE

PEREEE

REBEAZRS

REZERZZ
Ttn

REENE T2
B%IRN

RE2REERTL
Ttn

HEEAZR548

R-E-FF

TZA=T-HzE%

23 @#EE

Share Capital reserve

premium (note (i))
EAGRE

RiEE (HEzE())
HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TiEn

- 113,125
503,103 (528,103)
(49,000) -
675,101 -
1,129,204 (528,103)
1,129,204 (414,978)

Capital reserve represented the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the consideration for the acquisitions
upon the Reorganisation; and (ii) the aggregate of the
share capital and share premium of the direct owned
subsidiary of the Company.

(ii) Statutory reserves

(a) F&EME(E)
Exchange Retained
reserve earnings Total
SHERE REET L5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TiEn
19,328 290,608 423,061
- 145,423 145,423
17,526 - 17,526
17,526 145,423 162,949
- - (25,000)
- - (49,000)
- - 675,101
- - 601,101
36,854 436,031 1,187,111
B
() EAXEHE
BARGREETIIMENZRE ()
REARERELRRE © &)
RATEERE ZMBARMNR
Rt m E4ATE o
(i) EERE

The subsidiary of the Company in the PRC is required
to allocate 10% of the company’s net profit to the
statutory reserves fund until such fund reaches 50% of
its registered capital. The statutory reserves fund can be
utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to
offset accumulated losses or to increase its registered
capital, provided that such fund is maintained at a
minimum of 25% of its registered capital. As at 31
December 2011, retained earnings comprised statutory
reserves fund amounting to HK$50,904,000 (2010:

HK$26,529,000).

BERMMEERAT

R B BRI E R BB
NEVE I 10% D B 2 55 5F B
#e HEZRBELEZHETF
MEARBS0% - KEBE R
MR RTERES T ANEER
STESIESUEINEFME AR » %
HESREBEFNEEME
KR25%HIKF o« RZT——£F
+=-A=+—8  REBENEE
SETE /14 50,904,00078 7T (—
T—T 4 1 26,529,000/ 7T) °
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23 RESERVES (continued)

23 s
(b) The Company (b) &=AF]
Share Accumulated
premium loss Total
BeEE RitER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FET FExT
Balance at 1 January 2011 R-ZT——%F
—A—RmER 1129204 | ®8397) 1,120,807
Loss for the year FERHA - (5,203) (5,203)
Shares issued for Over-allotment MR ERNBEE
Option in connection with the AR B A TRR A
Global Offering (note 22(c)) (FH5E22(0)) 101,072 - 101,072
Balance at RZT——F+=A8
31 December 2011 =t+—BMisH 1,230,276 (13,600) 1,216,676
Balance as at RZE—FF
15 February 2010 ZA+HREBGEM
(date of incorporation) BB ER) eV A A - - -
Loss for the period HARE 18 - (8,397) (8,397)
Allotment of share pursuant REEAR AR D
to the Reorganisation 503,103 - 503,103
Shares issued under the RIBEER T2
capitalisation issue BTG (49,000) - (49,000)
Shares issued pursuant to RBEEIREE
the Global Offering BT 675,101 - 675,101
1,129,204 (8,397) 1,120,807
Balance at RZT—ZFF+=R
31 December 2010 =t+—BMisH 1,129,204 (8,397) 1,120,807
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24 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24 BENERR - HttEMRRRE

ACCRUALS FTFIE
Group Company
rEE NG|
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—H W+=A=+—H
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF —E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx FET TEx FHT
Trade payables (Note (a)) FERTBR R (BisE(a)) 249,570 143,033 - -
Other payables and accruals Hh e AR R FERT IR
Receipt in advance from TSR
customers REIE 78,791 17,804 - -
Other tax payables EMEMNTI 19,193 6,624 - -
Accrued expenses EA Y 26,962 16,272 2,173 4,378
Others Hith 15,468 15,035 - -
140,414 55,735 2,173 4,378
389,984 198,768 2,173 4,378
(@) The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: (@ ERNEZORESTET
As at 31 December
B+=A=+-—H
2011 2010
—F——F —TFF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Up to 90 days 90H AR 228,969 134,663
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 18,904 6,434
181 to 365 days 181HZE365H 1,369 329
Over 365 days 365HA £ 328 1,607
249,570 143,033

The average credit period granted by the Group’s suppliers
ranges from 0 to 180 days.

AEBEHERRTHOTFHERERN

T0=1

BERMMEERAT

80H -

—T—FEH 109



110

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRRME

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP

(i)

(ii)

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At 31
December 2011, the Group has unrecognised tax losses to
be carried forward against future taxable income amounted
to HK$40,480,000 (2010: HK$25,862,000). These tax losses
will expire from 2028 to 2031. The potential deferred tax
assets in respect of these tax losses which have not been
recognised will be calculated based on the effective income
tax rates according to prevailing tax laws and regulations in
which the Group operates.

Cai Shui [2008] Circular 1, which was jointly issued by the
Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation,
took effect on 22 February 2008. Under the circular,
dividends declared by foreign investment enterprises (“FIEs"”)
to foreign investors out of their cumulative retained earnings
as at 31 December 2007 shall be exempt from withholding
income tax. For dividends declared out of profit earned after
1 January 2008, withholding income tax will be levied on
the foreign investor at a tax rate of 10% unless the foreign
investor’s jurisdiction of incorporation has a tax treaty
with the PRC that provides for a different withholding tax
arrangement.

As at 31 December 2011, deferred income tax liabilities
have not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the withholding tax that would
be payable on unremitted earnings of the PRC subsidiary
of the Group amounting to approximately HK$21,174,000
(2010: HK$14,994,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

25 EEMEH —AEEH

(i)

(ii)

Luﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁafawﬁﬂmﬁ

AIREIB 1A A & FERR B a A2 IR m gt FT
%ii—iiZﬁIﬁJEﬂEf’EﬁE% o R TT——
F+-_A=+—8 AEEZRER
5 78 B9 18 /5 40,480,000/8 L (=& —
T4 1 25,862,000/87C) © A G5
HIH BB ERTIUA - LERTBEFBRE
BR_E-NFE_T=—FFH -
EARERZ L ERIBEE BRI
MIBEEBBRBEASELERAR M
R NERTERROIETE -

BF IR 3D R B R AR 15 48 B & 35 H A0 B
FR2008]F 19BN —_ETN\F A
“HBEK - BIEZEA - INER
BHE(INECENBE-_TTLHF
+Z A=+ HNKFREENAE
IMEE E TR S S E R M TE N
FiEfH - BT /N\F—A—B#EHN
EAREIRARE - BIE10%MF R
HEIMEEZBRTEMATER - BRIk
FFHME B AR S A R A HE [ R A

HETBHREELD - BETRMENR
LY o

NZZE——F+_A=+—8 &R
7K 52 [ ] $5 o) 45 (o) R 22 R A9 B RS
BEREEAETS R R RRE
B - & R B A = E AL AR B A BT
JB A AR IE AT A A TR B R AR
EUMBRRELEEMESHEER
#H4921,174,0008 L ( Z T —FF :
14,994,000/ 7)) °
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26 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash

generated from operations

Profit before income tax
Adjustment for:
Interest income (Note 5)
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 7)
Amortisation of leasehold land
(Note 7)
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 7)
Provision for impairment
of trade receivables (Note 19)

Changes in working capital:
Trade and bills receivables, deposits and
other receivables
Inventories
Trade payables, other payables and
accruals

Cash generated from operations

(a) FRAITEHABFNESEERERE

31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

26 REMSHNES
HYETBR
Year ended
2011
—E——F
HK$'000
FHT
KR AT S R A 5 A 207,463
TR
FLEMA (HI7ES) (6,317)
mE - BER

HABITE (MHFE7) 3,127
FAE T

ol (BisE7) 6

SR EE(MET) -
FEURBR FURE
B (HRE19) 28
204,307
BIBEARET
FEUR AR 3k e B U g -

Be RHEMEWRGRIE (225,581)
"8 (146,753)
FERTBRER - E b BR R FE

STEUE 178,788

CEFBIRE 10,761

BERMMEERAT

2010
—E-TF
HK$'000
TET
172,508
(928)
2,608
5

84

374

174,651

(54,542)
(37,962)

58,089

140,236

—T—EFE 111
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26 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)

(b) In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds
from sale of property, plant and equipment

comprise:

Net book amount
Loss on sale of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment

27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

AREDHE
HEWE - BEK
R iR R

HEWE - BEK
AR PTSFIR

As at 31 December 2010 and 2011, the Group had no contingent

liabilities.

28

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of certain office premises as follows:

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than
five years

112 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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26 REMBNERE @)

(b) AHRERBRS » HEWE
BERR BN FEIERE

Year ended 31 December
BE+ZA=1+—HILLFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT

= 317

- (84)

= 233

27 REE
RIE—ZEFR_T—F+_A=1+—
B AEBIEKAGE -

28 RKETHERIE
R-_ZE——F+_A=+—H  xEEIR
BETHAZEMENTARELEHEER
BRRREEBSMFBEENT

As at 31 December

B+=H=+-—A~
2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHBIT
4,459 4,452
4,384 2,253
8,843 6,705
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 BHMARS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has, directly
or indirectly, the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions.

(a) Transactions with related parties during the year
The following transaction with a related party was
undertaken by the Group during the year.

i —BALTAENDERKFEEEGEMA
TREEMALERM B REERREY
HigmEAZE @ AZALTERRREZS
Hofth A L) BAEE

(a) RAFEEBABLTNRS
TSR EAEE T R B R AR E R A
FE BB TS HETT

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—HLEE

2011 2010
—E2——F —T-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Rental expense to 7= B O B 8 A )
Beijing Hi Sunsray Information tREBEERRER
Technology Limited (“Sunsray”), AR AG([EEE ]
a subsidiary of Hi Sun (note) SR (M) 526 489

Note:  Prior to the Global Offering and the listing of the Company
on 20 December 2010, the then ultimate holding company
of the Company is Hi Sun. Subsequent to the completion of
the Global Offering and the listing, the Company became
an associate of Hi Sun.

The Directors of the Company have confirmed that the
related party transaction set out in the above table will
continue. Rental paid to Sunsray were charged at a fixed
monthly fee subject to the terms mutually agreed by both
parties.

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the above
related party transaction was carried out in the normal course
of business and at terms mutually negotiated between the
Group and Sunsray.

(b) Key management compensation
Details of key management compensation during the year
have been disclosed in Note 9.

Wet: ARAREHEER T —TF
TZAZTHLETAIMER&E
ERARREE - NTRE2IRE
ERETE  RNABKBBHN

Bt N A] o

ARRERCHER LRATEEIR T
ZEETT - AEREXMHNES
FAREEERWER - WX
FEHY R ARR

ARREERR LIRS T
REFEBBREPRBAEEEET
R B 1 MY R BETT ©

(b) FEEEEWS
TEREEERAFEMENFBRE
TRBRES -

TERHMBARAT | —T—FE8 113
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A summary of the published consolidated results and of the A KEZXIMEHMER LA B REFDEH
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five AEEBERABEHBEEE AHGEEERGE
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and ~ ZAEHEEBEHEM T

reclassified as appropriate, is set as below:

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——f§ CZT-TF ZZTNF ZTENF ZETTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET FAT TET FAT

Results ES |
Revenue WA 1,103,180 723,610 492,942 493,589 323,143
Gross profit EF 391,702 291,870 192,860 190,890 112,520
Operating profit B A 207,463 172,508 100,512 117,601 70,590
Profit for the year attributable KARIEZZBA

to the equity shareholders FEAEE RSEF

of the Company 181,795 145,423 84,551 106,062 64,215
Financial position B
Assets and liabilities BENAE

Total assets WA E 2,006,038 1,505,360 565,707 490,149 357,639

Total liabilities BeE 404,884 218,249 142,646 151,639 134,441
Capital and reserves AR N Rh A

Total equity B 1,601,154 1,287,111 423,061 338,510 223,198
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